
GREAT LAKES CHAPTER – AAAE 

GENERAL MEMBERSHIP and ANNUAL BUSINESS MEETING 

Friday, July 30, 2021 

Lincoln Marriott Cornhusker Hotel 

Lincoln, NE 

LNK is in Central Time Zone 

1. Call to Order & Introductions: –President J. Marana

2. Approval of Minutes, General Membership Meeting: – President J. Marana

July 11, 2021, Las Vegas, NV

3. Treasurers Report: –Treasurer M. Sethna

General Fund Account   

Convention Fund Accounts 

Profit/Loss, Member Service Programs 

Income/Expense Report 2020 Chapter Annual Conference, Virtual. 

Income/Expense Report 2020 Airports Conference, Virtual  

Budget and Cash Flow Report 

(a) Provisional Prioritized Expenses – J. Marana.

4. Membership Report: – Administrator – S. Maskow

5. AAAE Directors Report – B. Ryks and S. Lanter

6. Canadian Affairs Update – K. Goodlet

7. Chapter Committee Reports:

Officer/Coordinator –President, J. Marana 

A. Nominating Committee – C. Goodwin

B. Accreditation Committee –C. Denny

C. Board of Examiners – C. Denny

D. Professional Development Committee – M. Miller

Officer/Coordinator –1st Vice President, M. Cooper 

E. 2022/2023 GLC Annual Conf. Site Selection Committee – R. King

F. 2021 AAAE Annual Conference Program Committee – M. Cooper

G. Air Service Committee – M. Lenss

H. General Aviation Committee – W. Towle

I. Operations Safety and Planning Committee – A. Ward

Officer/Coordinator – 2nd Vice President J. Reed 

A. Membership Committee – D. Haring

B. Academic Relations Committee – D. Haring

C. Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Committee – A. Freeman and M. Murray

D. 2021 & 2022 NAC – J. Reed

E. Corporate Advisory Committee –P. Shaffer

9. Chapter Conferences/Seminars:

A. GLC Annual Conf.

1. Jul 29 – August 1, 2021 –Lincoln, NE – D. Haring and R. Barth

2. Jul 28-31, 2022 - Springfield, MO – B. Weiler and D. Schaumburg

3. July 27-30, 2023 – Dubuque, IA – T. Dalsing

B. Airports Conf. and Environmental Workshop

1. October 24-26, 2021 - Chicago, IL – M. Stephens and K. Scherer

C. C. Nat’l Airport Economic Dev. Conf., and Non-Aeronautical Land Use Workshop

1. April 26-27, 2021 - Virtual – A. Saeed and W. Towles

2. 2022 – Minneapolis, MN - A. Saeed and W. Towles



10. Chapter Election of Officers and Appointment of Executive Committee Representatives 

A. Chapter Officers and AAAE Officer/Board Candidates – C. Goodwin 

B. State/Provincial Representative Appointments – NE, IA, MO, MN, ND, SD 

 

11.      Old Business: 

 A. Scholarship Endowment Update 

 B.  By-Law Update 

 C. 

 

12.     New Business: 

 A.       GLC AAAE Policy and Practices Manual Update 

 B.       2020 & 2021 Resolutions 

 C. Scholarship Request Priorities 

 D. 

 

13.      Other Business: 

A.    

  

 14.       Adjourn: 

 

 

 



 
 

Great Lakes Chapter AAAE Board Meeting 

July 12, 2021 

Mandalay Bay, Las Vegas NV 

In Attendance: Scott Hinderman, Joe Marana, Melissa Cooper, Paul Shaffer, John Reed, Shawn 

Dobberstein, Tory Richardson, Charlie Goodwin, Scott Lanter, Paul Strege, Linda Frankl, Pat Frame, Mark 

Williams, Brian Murphy, Sheri Maskow, Kim Kenville, Mike Devoy, Greg Heaton, Megan Atkins Thoben, 

Eric Frankl.  

Called to order at 8:37am 

Motion to approve minutes made by Mr. Lanter, seconded by Mr. Hinderman.  All in favor, motion 

passed. 

Bylaws Provisions 

The bylaws will be changed to add a corporate representation to our board meetings.  

Ms. Cooper made the motion to allow the bylaws change, seconded by Mr. Goodwin.  All in favor, motion 

passed. 

Scholarship Endowment 

We have worked with AAAE to use their model when setting up our Endowment.  Mr. Sethna put 

together a policy to guide us now and in the future.  

Mr. Reed made the motion to follow the policy and endowment model, seconded by Ms. Kenville. All in 

favor, motion passed. 

Diversity Fund 

AAAE has started a Diversity fund and has asked all the chapters to contribute to it.  The Executive 

committee is recommending that the Great Lakes chapter donates $5,000 to this fund.  In working with 

the treasurer, we believe we have enough money in the account for this donation. 

Mr. Reed made the motion to approve donating the amount of $5,000 to the AAAE Diversity Fund, 

seconded by Mr. Richardson.  All in favor, motion passed. 

Committee Updates 

Nominating Committee: Mr. Goodwin reported they have sent out solicitations to the full membership.  

Packets of interest need to be sent to Mr. Goodwin by July 15th, 2021.  The Regional Director position on 

the National board is also open with a due date of July 15th, 2021. 

 

Accreditation Committee: Mr. Denny reported via proxy members have been receiving their 

accreditation from the Chapter. The Great Lakes chapter is leading in the number of accredited 

members.  Thank you to the mentors who have helped to make this possible. There are two members 

who will be sitting for their accreditation in Lincoln Nebraska, if you would like to be on the panel, 

please reach out to Mr. Denny.  The Board of Directors has approved Mr. Denny for a three-year term 

on the board. 



 
 
Business and Finance Committee: Mr. Sethna shared there will be a full financial update at the annual 

meeting in two weeks.  We are in a good financial position. 

 

Professional Development: Mr. Miller reported that 2020 was an off year, due to the COVID pandemic. 

The committee has started to give funds again this year, with all funds going out at once, rather than the 

fall and spring release model as in years past.  For the first time in recent years, we had more applicants 

than funds, with all funds being distributed among the chosen applicants.  You are not required to be a 

member of GLC to receive money.  However, if you are a member of a student chapter, you must join 

the GLC chapter.  We are working on clarifying this information on the application. Mr. Marana thanked 

Mr. Miller and his committee for the work they have done. 

 

Annual Conference: Ms. Cooper shared there were 1600 attendees in person in Las Vegas.  The AAAE 

2022 Annual Conference will be held from June 5th-8th in Seattle, Washington.  

 

Operations Committee: This is a committee that needs a member to chair it.  Mr. Ward will continue 

with the ARFF awards, but we would like to replace him as committee chair.  In the next year, there will 

be a big push from AAAE to match their committees and tracking of participation. 

 

Academic Relations: Mr. Reed reported they will start again in the fall when schools are back in session. 

Another virtual round table will be set up, which will be the third this year. Mr. Haring is still trying to 

extend this committee and get student involvement. The attendance on the previous round tables was 

good. 

 

Diversity Committee: Ms. Murray and Mr. Freeman are presenting a panel in Lincoln on generational 

differences. Please see the report in the board packet for more information. 

 

Airports Conference: Mr. Stephens and Ms. Scherer reported they are ahead of schedule with the 

conference in Chicago.  Their report is in the packet for more detailed information.  The FAA is still very 

involved with the travel budgets, which does cause some concern but the agenda for the conference is 

packed. 

 

National Economic Conference:  Mr. Towle and Mr. Saeed provided their report and the finances in the 

packet.  The conference was 100% online and a decent profit was made from it.  Next year the 

conference will be held in person in Minneapolis in March or April. 

 

Corporate Advisory Committee: Mr. Shaffer shared the corporate awards received nominations for all 

the categories of awards. All nomination deadlines are closed, and nominations will be reviewed and 

presented at the GLC annual conference.  The goal was to have a corporate advisory representative on 

each planning committee, and we have succeeded in that. Mr. Shaffer thanked everyone for giving him 

an official seat on the board. 



 
 
 

Annual Conference: At the time of this meeting there were 11 exhibitors, 5 virtual attendees, 159 full 

registrants, 35 spouses, 54 children, and $72,950 for sponsorship! This does not include Coffman who is 

our mask sponsor; Paradie our t-shirt sponsor; SP Plus our golf sponsor; and Mead & Hunt our fishing 

sponsor. Mr. Haring highly suggests RSVPing ASAP if you are on the fence about attending.  Registering 

sooner rather than later is appreciated so numbers can be updated.  The spouse and children’s agenda 

are packed with great things for them to do. 

Virtual Options 

Virtual is a way to get more people involved.  Ms. Frankl is encouraging your staff to attend events 

virtually to become more engaged.  The Airports Conference will have the operations track as virtual.  

This is not the full conference, but the general sessions.  When using a virtual option, a good agenda is a 

must with great speakers and great topics.  Setting a price for virtual events can be difficult.  We will 

continue to offer virtual options in order to grow our membership and more forward with the future. 

We will also be keeping in mind that many people are hesitant to join virtual conferences right now due 

to burn out.  To combat this, we will organize our events into more interactive situations with breakout 

sessions for the virtual attendees.  We are also looking into offering these for free to students. 

AAAE App 

AAAE will be hosting two of our events on the app.  We will be offering the annual conference and the 

airport conference as our two events.  The agenda, bios, headshots, etc. will be available for viewing.  

Please provide feedback on your app experience after the annual meeting.  This app is available to 

everyone. 

To Bridge the Gap 

Our goal is to get more schools involved with the industry and the organization which will help bridge 

the gap with students to professionals. We feel having the students see how we make our decisions and 

build relationships will be beneficial to the industry.  ADK is sponsoring an incentive to attending the 

Saturday sessions.  There will be a drawing of in person attendees for a $50 gift card. 

Old Business 

The Policies and Practices Manual was updated but will be updated again soon once AAAE approves the 

update to our bylaws.  The officers did a lot of work on updating the P&Ps and having them listed online 

in order to take the organization to the next level and move it forward.  Now the task at hand is to 

follow the update and the procedures that were modified. The P&P was originally written in 2005.   

As an organization, we would like to continue the virtual membership meetings. 

Meeting Adjourned at 9:45am 













GLCAAAE Membership Report Comparison

STATE MEMBERS JULY 2021 MEMBERS JULY 2020

Illinois 43 41

Indiana 52 47

Iowa 13 17

Kentucky 20 21

Michigan 37 37

Minnesota 43 40

Missouri 24 25

North Dakota 20 18

Nebraska 16 10

Ohio 39 48

South Dakota 12 13

Wisconsin 25 28

Section Total 344 345

CANADA

Manitoba 0 1

Nova Scotia 1 0

Ontario 5 4

Section Total 6 5

MISC STATES

Arizona 3 2

California 1 1

Colorado 3 2

Delaware 1 1

Florida 9 9

Georgia 1 0

Idaho 0 1

Kansas 5 1

Maine 1 1

Maryland 0 1

New Hampshire 1 1

New Jersey 1 2

New York 0 1

North Carolina 1 1

Oregon 1 1

Pennsylvania 1 1

South Carolina 1 1

Tennessee 3 3

Texas 3 4

Utah 4 4

Virginia 3 3

Washington DC 0 1

Washington  1 1

Section Total 44 43

Grand Total 394 393



 

ONTARIO REGION REPORT 
 
My report for the Province of Ontario shows that the COVID-19 third wave had a dramatic spike in cases, 
more than the second wave, which directly relates with the delayed roll-out of first round of vaccines in 
Ontario. This continues to have significant impacts on the Canadian aviation industry. As first dose 
vaccines quickly rolled-out in the month of May and second doses are well on the way, recovery from 
the pandemic is in sight.  
 
The Canadian government announced some financial relief to airlines. In particular, Air Canada was 
provided $5.9B, through the Large Employer Emergency Financing Facility (LEEFF) program. Other 
airlines are still waiting on packages from the Feds. Porter Airlines, based out of Billy Bishop Toronto City 
Airport (BBTCA), has suspended all commercial passenger services since March 2020 and continues to 
have a rolling restart date currently set at August 3, 2021. The Federal government has specific funding 
for rapid COVID testing which is being rolled-out to some of the airports as an extra layer of information. 
Canadian airports are seeing the pent-up demand of air travel with our US neighbours to the south, 
which is an exciting time to look forward to. 
 
Commercial Passenger Air Traffic levels continue to be at record lows in comparison to pre-pandemic 
levels but recovery is in sight. Domestic, Transborder and international travel looks to have a positive 
outlook for late summer-early fall 2021.  
 
Announcements from the Federal government of lifting travel restriction is underway, which is a positive 
step for the travel industry. This includes vaccinated individuals to enter in to Canada without the hotel 
quarantine measure but still subject to a negative PCR test upon arrival. There is still some concerns that 
the announcement doesn’t align with that of Health Canada’s Expert Advisory Panel. The two primary 
concerns are, 2-meter physical distancing at airports and international travellers limited to only 4 
airports. Challenges exist at these 4 airports with only 5% pre-pandemic levels of international travel. 
 
Overall, there is lots of positive news coming for the Canadian aviation industry as it relates to the 
pandemic recovery but there is still lots to do in adapting to the “new normal”. We are excited and 
preparing for increased air travel demand in the near future. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
 
 
Chris Pearce, CD, AAE, MASc 
Airport Duty Manager 
Billy Bishop Toronto City Airport 
416-203-6942 ext 17 





 
 
 

AAAE/GLC Annual Conference Chapter Business Meeting 

July 11/30, 2021 
                       

Reporting to President Joe Marana A.A.E., Officer Coordinator    

 

 

As a reminder, our committee did not offer any awards in 2020 due to the negative financial condition of the 

Chapter brought about by COVID-19. 

 

We took advantage of this pause in awards to review our applications, rating forms and award cycle.  While in 

the past, chapter member funds were awarded in the summer and student funds were awarded in the fall, we 

decided to have both categories awarded simultaneously in 2021.  This allowed us to better allocate our funds 

to all deserving candidates without having to reserve funding from the chapter members based on the 

unknown number/quality of student applications we would be receiving in the fall. 

 

2021 PDC awards 

Funding was awarded to two chapter members and three students this year.  The student funding totaled 

$3,600, while the chapter member funding will be up to $2,275.  The reason that this is not an exact amount is 

that these awards include amounts for conference attendance, and those funds will be reimbursed after the 

applicant attends the conference and submits receipts. 

 

We were pleased to have more applicants this year than during any recent year and we were not able to award 

funds to all those that applied. 

 

Through our application/review process, we continue to find that there is confusion related to GLC vs. AAAE 

membership.  In fact, of the eight application packages we received only three had correct information relating 

to the status, and/or length, of their GLC membership.  Three of the applicants incorrectly stated they were 

members of GLC and the other two had discrepancies relating to the length of their membership.  

 

We plan to make further revisions to our application forms and online application portal to emphasize that 

becoming a member of AAAE does not automatically make you a member of your corresponding chapter. 

 

 

Committee Membership: 

Mark Miller, C.M.   Minneapolis-St. Paul International Airport (MSP) 

Kim Kenville,  C.M.  University of North Dakota 

Cortney Harris, C.M.  Chicago O’Hare International Airport (ORD) 

Sarah Ryan, C.M.  Lexington Blue Grass Airport (LEX) 

 

 

Report submitted by Mark Miller, Committee Chair 

Professional Development Committee (PDC) 
       
 



2021 Great Lakes Chapter Annual Conference 
Lincoln, Nebraska 

 
Conference Committee: 

Melissa Cooper 
Katie England 
Linda Frankl 
David Haring 

Scott Lanter 
Joe Marana 
Robert McNally 
Ty Sander 

Cortney Harris  
Paul Shaffer 
Paul Strege 
Braden Wilson 

Rachel Barth            Adam Freeman        Megan Murray 
 

 

Schedule (Central Time): 
Friday, July 30  
 8:00am – 8:45am Welcome & Opening Remarks  

Joe Marana, A.A.E. 
    Great Lakes Chapter President 
    Director of Operations and Facilities 
    Fort Wayne International Airport 
 
    TBD – Lincoln Elected Official 
     

Lawrence J. Krauter, A.A.E., AICP 
AAAE Chair 
Chief Executive Officer 
Spokane International Airport, Felts Field & Airport Business Park 
 

    Spencer Dickerson 
Senior EVP Global Operations 
American Association of Airport Executives/International Association of 
Airport Executives 
 

8:45 am – 9:45am Chapter Business Meeting   
 
9:45am – 10:00am Coffee Break with Exhibitors 
 

 10:00am – 10:45am Updates from the Chapter’s State Representative 
 
 10:45am – 11:30am Session #1 – FAA Update and Q&A 

Moderator: Melissa Cooper, A.A.E. 
Speakers: Dominika Drozdzal, Senior Advisor, Office of Great Lakes 
Regional Administrator  
Debra Sanning, Acting Central Region Deputy Administrator  
 

 
 11:30am – 11:40am Spotlight #1 – FAA Aviation Workforce and Education   

Moderator: Melissa Cooper, A.A.E. 
 Speaker:  



Chris Sharp, Aviation Workforce and Education Division Manager 
(Virtual) 

 
 11:45pm – 1:30pm Fishing Tournament 
 

1:30 pm – 1:40 pm Spotlight #2 - Virtual Tower Pilot Program 
Moderator: Ty Sander, P.E., Vice President & Aviation Group Manager, 
Crawford, Murphy & Tilly    
Speakers:  
Jason Licon, Airport Director, Northern Colorado Regional Airport 
(Virtual) 
David Ulane, Director of Aviation, State of Colorado (Virtual) 

 
1:40 pm – 1:45 pm Spotlight #3 – GLC AAAE Airports Conference & Environmental 

Workshop  
Moderator: Katie England, Capital Planner, Butler, Fairman, & Seufert, 
Inc.  
Speaker: Katie Scherer, A.A.E., Operations Manager, Fort Wayne 
International Airport 

 
1:45pm – 2:45pm Session #2 – Bridging the Generational Gap 

Moderators – Adam Freeman, C.M. Airport Operations Manager, 
Rosecrans Memorial Airport 
Mindy Price, Chief Pace Setter, Direct Effect Solutions (Virtual) 
Speakers –  
Megan Murray, ACE, Assistant Airport, Manager, Sawyer International 
Airport 
Bob Selig, A.A.E., Retired Airport Director, Capital Regional Airport and 
Airport Authority Board of Directors 
Craig Williams, A.A.E., Airport Director, Kalamazoo/Battle Creek 
International Airport 
Brady Wilson, Student, Western Michigan University 

 
2:45pm – 3:00pm Refreshment Break with Exhibitors 
 
3:00pm –3:15 pm Spotlight #4 - Stakeholder Engagement  

Moderator: Katie England, Capital Planner, Butler, Fairman, & Seufert, 
Inc.  
Speaker: Regan Schnug, Kimley-Horn  

 
3:15 pm - 4:00pm Session #3 – Adapting to changes during Uncertain times  

Moderator: Paul Strege, PE, Vice President, Aviation, Mead & Hunt 
Speakers:   
Richard King, A.A.E,  
Marty Lenss, A.A.E, Executive Director,  
David Schaumburg, A.A.E, Deputy Director, Springfield-Branson Airport 
  

 



 
 
Saturday, July 31  

8:00am – 8:45 am Session #4 – Supporting Employee Well-Being: Workforce Program Best 

Practices and Integrating Work-from-Home and   Return-to-Work 

Moderator: Linda Frankl, A.A.E., Director, Senior Practice Leader, ADK 

Consulting & Executive Leadership Search 

Speakers:  

Allison Alexander, PH.D., Director, Human Capital, ICF (virtual) 
Kathryn Solook, Senior Manager, Human Capital, ICF (virtual) 
Paul Strege, P.E., C.M., Business Unit Leader, Aviation Services, Mead & 
Hunt  
Casey Denny, A.A.E. Chief Operations Officer, Columbus Regional 
Airport Authority   

      
8:45am – 8:55 am  Spotlight #5 – Asset Management Technology and Management 

Solutions 
Moderator: Linda Frankl, A.A.E., Director, Senior Practice Leader, ADK 
Consulting & Executive Leadership Search 
Speaker: Jill Geboy, Project Manager/Strategic Consulting, Woolpert 

 
8:55 am – 9:05 am Spotlight #6 - LNK Terminal Modernization project 

Moderator: Joe Marana, A.A.E., Director of Operations & Facilities, Fort 
Wayne International Airport 
Speaker: David Haring, A.A.E., Executive Director, Lincoln Airport 
Authority 

 
9:05am – 9:50 am Session #5 – Watch Where You Step: Political Tips, Tricks, and Trips 

Moderator: Scott Latner, A.A.E., Director of Public Safety and 
Operations, Blue Grass Airport 
Speakers: 
Patrick Dame, C.M., Executive Director, Rapid City Regional Airport 
Eric J. Frankl, A.A.E., Executive Director, Blue Grass Airport 
 

9:50 am – 10:00 am Spotlight #7 NDOT UAS Program 
Coordinator: David Haring, A.A.E., Executive Director, Lincoln Airport 
Authority 
Speaker: Ann Richart, A.A.E., Nebraska DOT   

 
 10:00am – 10:15 am Coffee Break with Exhibitors 
 

10:15am – 10:50 am Session #6 Marketing & Branding  
   Moderator – Rachel Barth 

Speakers:  
Stephen Clark, C.M., Deputy of Commercial Development, Gerald R. 
Ford International Airport Authority 
Jay Wilkinson, Chief Executive Officer, Firespring 



 
 
1:00pm – 4:00pm  Session #7 - Aviation Issues Roundtable  
 Moderator – Cortney Harris, C.M. Project Manager – Design and 

Construction, Chicago O’Hare International Airport  



 

  
 

 

 

 

St. Cloud Regional Airport 
1550 – 45th Avenue SE 

Suite 1 
St. Cloud, MN  56304 

 

 

 

DATE:  July 30, 2021 

TO:  AAAE Great Lakes Chapter Business Meeting 

FROM:  Bill Towle, A.A.E., General Aviation Committee Liaison Chair 

SUBJECT: Report for 2021 Business Meeting in Lincoln, NE 

 

The AAAE General Aviation Committee continues to meet virtually on a monthly basis. Due to the virtual 

nature of the meetings, attendance has been very good for each of these meetings, which translates into 

great information on each subject. Very good discussion from many airports.  

AAAE General Aviation Committee has been very active. Recent meetings include discussion around 

airport re-opening and mask requirements, FAA Grants, SMS, DEF fuel contamination, advanced air 

mobility issues and new requirements with the 2017 NFPA 407 rule update. 

FAA issued a special airworthiness information bulletin regarding jet fuel and DEF Contamination. 

This was circulated to the AAAE General Aviation Committee since many GA Airports also sell fuel.  

Additionally, AAAE circulated an NFPA 407 guidance document (attached) on how FAA Airport 

Certification Safety Inspectors (ACSIs) will be handling enforcement of the new requirements of the 2017 

NFPA rule update. 

If these subjects interest you, I highly encourage you to join the discussion by joining the GA Committee 

and joining the AAAE General Aviation Hub. You will then receive the invite to the monthly virtual 

meeting. 

 

Thanks 

Many thanks to AAAE National GA Committee Chair Scott McMahon, A.A.E., and AAAE Staff Justin 

Barkowski and Jeremy Valcich, for their hard work on GA issues this past year. 

https://rgl.faa.gov/Regulatory_and_Guidance_Library/rgSAIB.nsf/dc7bd4f27e5f107486257221005f069d/5ba413a036dd1570862586bd006aa062/$FILE/AIR-21-08.pdf


American Association of Airport Executives  

NFPA 407 Guidance 

 

In a conversation late last week, FAA informed AAAE that the agency has provided guidance to 

their regional and district offices on how Airport Certification Safety Inspectors (ACSIs) must handle 

enforcement of new requirements in the 2017 revision of NFPA 407, Standard for Aircraft Fuel Servicing, 

Section 5.1.12, at Part 139 airports. As you may recall, this section mandates that all new and existing 

airport fuel loading racks be equipped with automatic shutoff systems that are compatible with mobile 

refuelers no later than today, June 2. 

The following notes are based on the conversation with FAA and summarize the internal 

guidance that has been provided to ACSIs. 

1. ACSIs are required to confirm the fueling standard adopted in the Airport Certification 

Manual (ACM) for each Part 139 airport no later than July 10.  

 

2. For Part 139 airports who have adopted 2017 NFPA 407 but have not met the requirements 

of Section 5.1.12 by today, the ACSI will contact the airport and document this in a 

compliance letter. 

 

3. The planned correction date must be no later than 18 months from today’s deadline, or 

December 2, 2022. However, the correction should be completed as soon as possible.  

 

4. The compliance status of each Part 139 airport will be tracked via FAA internal systems. A 

Letter of Investigation will be issued for any airports that have not come into compliance by 

December 2, 2022.  

FAA has acknowledged that the new requirements outlined above will not be enforced at Part 

139 airports that have not adopted 2017 NFPA 407 in their current ACM. Additionally, FAA has indicated 

they will accept modifications or exemptions to the new requirements in Section 5.1.12 that have been 

granted/approved by the Authority Having Jurisdiction (AHJ) at Part 139 airports under the provisions of 

Section 1.3.4 of 2017 NFPA 407. The agency’s acceptance is dependent on review of the justification for 

the modification/exemption and ensuring it meets the requirements of Section 1.3.4.  

NATA has prepared both a template and letter of support for stakeholders to request a 

modification from their AHJ.  

If you have any questions, please contact Jeremy Valcich (jeremy.valcich@aaae.org) for further 

assistance.  

 

Thank you. 

 

https://www.nata.aero/assets/Site_18/files/NFPA407/AHJ%20Modification%20Request%20Template_Draft%20(1).docx
https://www.nata.aero/assets/Site_18/files/GIA/nfpa%20407/NATA_Letter%20of%20Support%20for%20Modification.pdf
mailto:jeremy.valcich@aaae.org


OPERATIONS, PLANNING AND SAFETY COMMITTEE REPORT 

Great Lakes Chapter – AAAE 
Business Meeting 

July 30, 2021 
Lincoln, NE 

 
The Operations, Planning and Safety Committee consists of the following members: Committee Chair, Allen Ward, 
A.M.F., Command Fire Chief, Rural/Metro Specialty Fire Division, Richard King, A.A.E. Deputy Executive Director, 
Sioux Falls Regional Airport, Sioux Falls, South Dakota, Michael J. Ornat, Chief, Department of Public Safety, South 
Bend International Airport, South Bend, Indiana, Tom Painter, Rural/Metro Airport Fire Chief, Bismarck Airport, 
Bismarck, North Dakota, and Steve Petty, VP/COO of Operations and Public Safety, Blue Grass Airport, Lexington 
Kentucky.  
 
Key issues and/or challenges since last report: 
 
Item 1:  GLC-AAAE ARFF Awards  
We had four nominations for the ARFF Achievement Award, and one nomination for the ARFF Valor Award. After 
review and discussions of the nominations the committee has selected Josh Shepardson, Gerald R. Ford 
International Airport for the ARFF Achievement Award and the CVG Aircraft Rescue and Firefighting Department 
for the ARFF Valor Award. The awards will be presented at the President’s Dinner. 
 
Item 2: ARFF Working Group 
Registration is now open for the 31st Annual Int’l Educational & Training Symposium, titled Unity and Celebration. 
This conference will be held at the St. Louis Union Station Hotel in St. Louis, Missouri, August 29 – September 1, 
2021 
 
Item 3: Advisory Circulars / CertAlert’s 
CertAlert No. 21-01 was issued on 6/1/2021. This CertAlert cancels No. 19-02 Aqueous Film Forming (AFFF) Testing 
at Certificated Part 139 Airports dated October 29,2019 and provides updated information and recommendations 
about optional equipment for use in testing Aqueous Forming Foam (AFFF) systems on ARFF Vehicles.  
 
Item 4: NFPA Codes Review 
During the April 2019 NFPA Standards Council Meeting, a document consolidation plan was approved that will help 
better serve the Emergency Response & Responder Safety (ERRS) stakeholders; and create better efficiencies for 
the Technical Committee (TC) members that volunteer to serve this audience. This consolidation effort pertains to 
114 current standards, including various guides and best practices that will be combined, by topic, into 38 
standards over the next five years.  The move will result in better subject matter integration, more accurate 
documents, and greater TC member travel efficiencies.  
 
The below ARFF related NFPA Standards have been consolidated into 3 Standards. The First Draft Report for these 
three Standards is scheduled for release on September 3, 2021, with Second Draft Public Comments closing on 
November 12, 2021. 
 
NFPA 460 - www.nfpa.org/460, Standard for Aircraft Rescue and Firefighting Services at Airports, Recurring 
Proficiency of Airport Fire Fighters, and Evaluating Aircraft Rescue and Firefighting Foam Equipment. This will be a 
consolidation of Standards NFPA 403, NFPA 405, and NFPA 412.  
 
NFPA 440 - www.nfpa.org/440 , Guide for Aircraft Rescue and Firefighting Operations and Airport/Community 
Emergency Planning. This will be a consolidation of Standards NFPA 402 and NFPA 424.  
 

https://link.zixcentral.com/u/e26fe155/NDverGrH6hG82Zf_O49hPQ?u=http%3A%2F%2Fr20.rs6.net%2Ftn.jsp%3Ff%3D001hM2rpSAEzNICQo8KKWoKpDCcQUgOiVMVty9zNVfhItPhG-X3CQAdDCje37Bi4vm2f0LnUeM9BupBr82eqRV5DFpIuEHtRLuo9YZfzCE_9fEXqmxLX6L_EMn2KlJnmuk98DTxedVsL8nzeP6d03nGxA%3D%3D%26c%3DHSTNS-WBMf45DDP2zJ8gGZRV915RUtn1ijcBQL_jy298jiGuD5hgtw%3D%3D%26ch%3DKb8P2_42x7J-TGEIal2jYGsNJzagflsQKeIi-539aJgVv5_QYco1Qw%3D%3D
https://link.zixcentral.com/u/c8123183/ihbfrGrH6hG82Zf_O49hPQ?u=http%3A%2F%2Fr20.rs6.net%2Ftn.jsp%3Ff%3D001hM2rpSAEzNICQo8KKWoKpDCcQUgOiVMVty9zNVfhItPhG-X3CQAdDCje37Bi4vm2aWIWijpzT1rj5UtV5YubTGmE_uwCpZ0rz1jhGTibf3EZdSrAD1pINPG9i-Car-mO3sfTH8UplLttH01zwwceJA%3D%3D%26c%3DHSTNS-WBMf45DDP2zJ8gGZRV915RUtn1ijcBQL_jy298jiGuD5hgtw%3D%3D%26ch%3DKb8P2_42x7J-TGEIal2jYGsNJzagflsQKeIi-539aJgVv5_QYco1Qw%3D%3D


NFPA 1900 - www.nfpa.org/1900, Standard for Aircraft Rescue and Firefighting Vehicles, Automotive Fire 
Apparatus, Wildland Fire Apparatus, and Automotive Ambulances. This will be a consolidation of Standards NFPA 
414, NFPA 1901, NFPA 1906, and NFPA 1917.  

https://link.zixcentral.com/u/4aa2f8a5/9OLfrGrH6hG82Zf_O49hPQ?u=http%3A%2F%2Fr20.rs6.net%2Ftn.jsp%3Ff%3D001hM2rpSAEzNICQo8KKWoKpDCcQUgOiVMVty9zNVfhItPhG-X3CQAdDCje37Bi4vm21DLUwz1kkreqf1w9hH295PQ5R2UWf2lEfG1hEnlJanTvWpH8HhZNXGJI8m5J8VoKzTpLsCPE34Iy2PtjzbCgCQ%3D%3D%26c%3DHSTNS-WBMf45DDP2zJ8gGZRV915RUtn1ijcBQL_jy298jiGuD5hgtw%3D%3D%26ch%3DKb8P2_42x7J-TGEIal2jYGsNJzagflsQKeIi-539aJgVv5_QYco1Qw%3D%3D


 

 

L i n c o l n  A i r p o r t  A u t h o r i t y  –  P O  B o x  8 0 4 0 7  –  L i n c o l n ,  N E   6 8 5 0 1  –  4 0 2 . 4 5 8 . 2 4 0 0  –  

a d m i n i s t r a t i o n @ l i n c o l n a i r p o r t . c o m  

www.lincolnairport.com 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Academic Relations 

 
 In my last update as part of the Winter Meeting, I discussed several items.  The first was the 
implementation of a new “Student Chapter Roundtable” virtual series and how that had been received.  The 
second Student Chapter Roundtable was held on April 22nd.  A copy of the agenda from that meeting has been 
included with this report for your reading enjoyment.  Unfortunately, turn out for that meeting was not nearly as 
impressive as the first of the round tables.  Conversation revealed several reasons that could have been the case, 
including finals conflicts, lack of communication to all members of the student chapter, lack of reminders, etc.  
The lack of reminders appeared to be one of the biggest cited reasons as I was over the top on my notices for the 
first round table discussion but not as aggressive for the second one.  Following the conversation, we discussed 
the best option for the next round table.  As could be guessed, having one during the summer did not resonate 
with anyone so the next one will be scheduled in mid fall, once students have had the opportunity to return, get 
started in the semester, and start up group activities once again.  If you are interested in getting involved in these 
discussion, or have any ideas for topics, spotlights, etc., by all means let any of the folks on the GLCAAAE 
Academic Relations Committee (K. Knezevich, C. Nelson, A. Thorsen) know so we can get it on the list.  
 
The second key item was the commencement of a process to identify and categorize individuals willing to serve 
as mentors.  Thanks again to all of you who have reached out to indicate you would be willing to serve as 
mentors.  We are still working through some of the hiccups in the database we are putting together to allow for 
easy pairing.  My hope is that we have it close to ready by the time of the conference so I can pester those of you 
who have not signed up to do so!  

 
 
Membership 
 

No additional information at this time.  

To: John Reed, A.A.E. 

From: David S. Haring, A.A.E. 

Date: 6/17/2021 

Re: Academic Relations and Membership Committee Report 



3053 Nationwide Parkway · Brunswick, Ohio 44212 · Phone: 234-803-1941 · www.glcaaae.org

GLCAAAE Student Chapter Roundtable 

Agenda 

1. Welcome and GLCAAAE Representative Introductions (5 Min)  
a. Nominating Committee Chair President Charlie Goodwin 

(CMH) 
i. Chapter President Joe Marana (FWA) 

ii. 2nd Vice President John Reed (RST) 
iii. Academic Relations Cmte. Chair Dave Haring (LNK) 

1. Committee Member Ashley Thorsen (SBN) 
2. Committee Member Christian Nelson (LEX) 
3. Committee Member Kyle Knezevich (Eastern 

Kentucky University) 
iv. Prof. Development Cmte. Chair Mark Miller (MSP) 

2. GLCAAAE Value to Students (10 Min)  
a. AAAE Membership vs GLC-AAAE Membership 

i. Membership in National AAAE does not include 
Chapter membership 

b. Educational Opportunities (Membership meetings) 
c. Scholarship Opportunities 

i. Currently Accepting Applications 
d. Networking/Leadership Opportunities 

i. Pathways to Engagement 
ii. Mentor Database 

3. GLCAAAE Young Professional Spotlight (10 Min) 
a. Cameron Sidor,  Properties Specialist (SDF) 

i. AAAE Student Chapter Experience 
ii. GLCAAAE Experience 

iii. First Job Reflections 

4. General Questions and Discussion (Open Forum) (15 Min)  
a. Internship Conversations 

i. Tasks, Pay, Demand,  
b. ACE vs CM conversation 

i. How are students obtaining? 

President 
JOSEPH G. MARANA, AAE 
Fort Wayne, Indiana 

First Vice President 
MELISSA W. COOPER, AAE 
Kansas City, Missouri 

Second Vice President 
JOHN REED, AAE 
Rochester, Minnesota 

Treasurer 
MARC M. SETHNA, AAE 
Columbus, Ohio  

Past President 
SHAWN A. DOBBERSTEIN, AAE 
Fargo, North Dakota 

State / Provincial Representatives 
CORTNEY E. HARRIS, CM 
Chicago, Illinois 

NATHANIEL HAHN 
Evansville, IN 

MARTIN P. LENSS, CM 
Cedar Rapids, Iowa 

CHRISTIAN NELSON, CM 
Lexington, KY 

LAWRENCE C.  BOWRON 
Battle Creek, Michigan 

JOHN OSTROM, CM 
St. Paul, Minnesota 

DAVID SCHUBERT 
Chesterfield, Missouri 

ROBERT MCNALLY 
Lincoln, Nebraska 

RYAN M.  RIESINGER, CM 
Grand Forks, North Dakota 

CHRIS POLLOCK 
Columbus, Ohio 

RICHARD W. KING, AAE 
Sioux Falls, South Dakota 

RACHEL ENGELER 
Green Bay, Wisconsin 

KIRK GOODLET, IAP 
Winnipeg, Manitoba Canada 

CHRIS PEARCE, AAE 
Ontario, Canada 

Administrative Office 
J&M BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, 
LLC 
Sheri Maskow 



3053 Nationwide Parkway · Brunswick, Ohio 44212 · Phone: 234-803-1941 · www.glcaaae.org

c. Master’s Degree vs. Accreditation 
i. When can they be obtained? 

ii. Is there a benefit to one over the other? 
d. How did you end up in an Airport Administration/Focus 

program 
e. Ways to bring the Chapters together? 

i. Information sharing 
ii. Notice of events 

f.Frequency of meetings 
i. Monthly vs. Quarterly 

a. Quantity of information 
b. Facilitation of Student Chapter Forums if 

Monthly 



 
 
 

Committee Board Report 

July 11th, 2021 

 
The Diversity Committee has utilized questionnaire results obtained from the Chapter in 2019 to begin 

planning a presentation focusing on one of the most sought after topics from the questionnaire, generational 

differences in the work place. The committee has gathered professionals in the industry to present at the 

upcoming Great Lakes Chapter Annual Conference in Lincoln, Nebraska on July 30th. This panel will include 

those from Generation Z through Baby Boomers, which will share experiences from all generations. The 

committee hopes this presentation will start the much needed conversations on generational differences in the 

professional workplace. 

 

We are also focusing on committee growth and now have six active members. Committee meetings are 

being held regularly once a month. The committee hopes to grow the committee in the coming months, 

especially in terms of student members. Anyone interested in joining is encouraged to reach out to the co-

chairs, Megan Murray and Adam Freeman.  

 

 

 

Committee Membership: 

Megan Murray, ACE  Sawyer International Airport 

Adam Freeman, C.M.  Rosecrans Memorial Airport 

Melissa Cooper, A.A.E. Kansas City Downtown Airport 

John C Reed, A.A.E.  Rochester International Airport 

Braden Wilson  Western Michigan University 

Samantha Brady  South Bend International Airport 

 

Submitted by Megan Murray and Adam Freeman, Co-Committee Chairs 

Diversity Committee 
       
 



 

 

 

DATE:  July 30, 2021 

TO:  AAAE Great Lakes Chapter Business Meeting 

FROM:  Bill Towle, A.A.E., and Atif Saeed, A.A.E., Conference Co-Chairs 

SUBJECT: National Airport Economic Development Conference Report for 2021 Business 

Meeting in Lincoln, NE 

 

The National Airport Economic Development Conference (NAEDC) was held virtually during the 

afternoons of April 27 and April 28, 2021. It was well attended and the stats are attached. 

Sessions included Airport Workforce Development Strategies, Economic Impact Analysis, 

Concession Partnerships, What is Section 163 and its impact on development, Non-Aeronautical 

Development, Bill Swelbar Industry Update, and the Air Service Roundtable. 

The planning committee will be planning for an in-person conference in Minneapolis in 2022 and 

will debrief the 2021 conference later this summer when the numbers are tallied. 

Many Thanks 

Many thanks to AAAE Conference Liaisons Janet Bennett and Jonna Thoma, as well as the village 

of people that it takes to put on a conference like this, especially Co-Chair Atif Saeed, Joe Marana, 

Melissa Cooper, John Reed, Abe Weber, Barbie Schalmo, Paul Shaffer, Paul Strege, Tom Werner, 

Bryan Johnson, Eric Johnson, Brian Peters, and Patrick Dooley. Their hard work made this 

conference a success. 

 



F I N A N C I A L   R E P O R T

AAAE and Great Lakes Chapter/AAAE
2021 National Airport Economic Development Conference
April 14-15, 2021

Meeting #200422

2021 2019
Total number of paid attendees 61 54
Total number of staff 5 1
Total number of comps 29 29

INCOME
Registration $18,495.00 $31,805.00
Sponsorship $5,000.00 $16,373.40
Less Balance Due $0.00 $0.00
GROSS INCOME $23,495.00 $48,178.40

EXPENSES
Credit Card Fees $822.33 $1,686.24
Advertising/Marketing $69.68 $0.00
Conference Calls $140.51 $0.00
GROSS EXPENSES $1,032.52 $1,686.24

NET INCOME $22,462.48 $46,492.16

50% SHARE OF NET INCOME $11,231.24 $23,246.08

Less 75% advanced revenue split $0.00 ($12,270.77)
Total check due: $11,231.24 $10,975.31

AAAE Page 1 6/21/2021



DATE:  June 17, 2021 

TO:  AAAE Great Lakes Chapter Membership 

FROM:  Paul Shaffer, Corporate Committee Chair 
  Paul Strege, Corporate Committee Chair Co-Chair 
 
SUBJECT: Corporate Committee Report for AAAE GLC Winter Board Meeting  

 

In the spirit of the GLC-AAAE CORPORATE ADVISORY COMMITTEE GOVERNING RULES, the Corporate 
Committee provides this written report with the intention of effectively executing the mission of the 
Corporate Committee which is to foster communication, participation, and value for corporate members 
to the GLC-AAAE. 

 

1. Corporate Awards deadline was extended to June 11, 2021 which yielded 15 total award 

submissions. Thank you to those who encourage awards submissions.  We are now organizing 

the submissions for review by the review panel.   

 

2. Conference planning Support.  It is out intent to place at least one corporate member on each 

conference planning committee.  This does not preclude other corporate members from 

participating but rather ensures we have at least one member engaged on each conference 

planning committee.  So far we have been successful in having multiple corporate members on 

each conference committee planning calls.   

Liaisons from corporate membership on conference committees for the remainder of 2021 are as 
follows: 

1. GLC Annual Conference – Katie England, BF&S  
2. GLC Airport’s Conference – Pat Frame, RS&H 

 

3. We support the consideration being given to amend the chapter by-laws to allow a formal 

Executive Board representation of Corporate Committee on the Chapter’s Executive Board over 

the current Advisory Board Member arrangement.    

We thank the Board for the opportunity to report on behalf of the corporate membership. 

End Report              



Time

11:00 AM - 12:00 PM

12:00 - 12:15 PM

12:15- 1:00 PM

1:00 -2:00 PM

2:00-2:45 PM

2:45-3:00 PM

3:00-4:00 PM

4:00-4:45 PM

4:45 PM

2:00-5:00 PM

Time

7:30 - 10:00 AM

7:30 - 8:30 AM

8:30 - 9:00 AM

Track 1: 

Airport Certification & Operations

Track 2:

Maintenance & Engineering

Track 3:

Planning & Programming

9:00 - 10:30 AM

10:30 - 11:00 AM

11:00 AM - 12:00 PM

Regional Inspection Trends & Best Practices 

Presenter: FAA Cert, Airports 

Moderator: 

Coordinator: Josh Burger

Pavement Preservation

Presenters: 

Moderator:  Samantha Brady (SBN)

Coordinator: 

Indianapolis Case Study- Preliminary Engineering 

& Programming

Presenters: Tony McMichael (IND)

Moderator: 

Coordinator: Tony McMichael

12:00- 1:30 PM

1:30 - 2:30 AM

Sufficiently Qualified Personnel

Presenters: FAA Cert (obligations), Best practices 

from Med/ Lrg and a small hub airports

Moderator: 

Coordinator: Mark Papko

Construction Best Practices

Presenters: Chris Reis (Mead & Hunt) Theresa 

Samosick (DTW)

Moderator: Consultant

Coordinator: 

Advanced Air Mobility/UAV

Presenter: Mark Collins 

Moderator: 

Coordinator: Tony McMichael 

2:30 - 3:00 PM

3:00 - 4:00 PM

Cargo Growth During the Pandemic

Presenters: Seth Ngyen (RFD)/CMT, Greg 

Weber(LCK), 

Moderator: 

Coordinator: Josh Burger

Vehicle Maintenance Inventory

Presenters: Bill LeFore (MSN)

Moderator: 

Coordinator: 

Forecasting

Presenters:  

Moderator: 

Coordinator: Rich Kula

`

4:00 - 5:?? PM

5:30 - 7:00 PM

Time

7:30 - 10:00 AM

7:30 - 8:30 AM

8:25 - 8:30 AM

08:30 - 09:15 AM

Virtual Inspections   

Presenters: FAA Cert (expectations moving 

forward), Best practices from a couple airports. 

Moderator: 

Coordinator: Mark Papko

AC 150/5300-13 Airport Design Update

Presenters: Steve Debben (FAA)

Moderator: Patrick Frame

Coordinator: 

Section 163

Presenters:  Carlos Laverty, Joe Worley and Susan 

Zellers (Hanson) 

Moderator: 

Coordinator: Katie England

9:15 - 10:15 AM

Excursions and Alert III's: Airport Obligations

Presenters: FAA & Airports Ops/ARFF

Moderator:  

Coordinator: Mark Papko

FAA's Emerging Hot Spot Improvement Program 

(Improving with standard geometry)

Presenters: Mike Ferry

Moderator: Mike Stephens

Coordinator: 

Property Management Case Study at MSN

Presenters: Bobb Beaucamp (FAA) Deb Bartell 

(FAA) & Laura Morland (Mead & Hunt)

Moderator: 

Coordinator: Michael Stephens

10:15 - 10:45 AM

10:45 - 11:45 AM

11:45 AM - 12:00 PM

12:00- 1:00 PM

Welcome- Michael Stephens (MSN)

Registration for Airports Conference

BREAK

Safety and Standards Up  John Dermody(FAA)

Moderator: AGL620

Coordinator: 

LUNCH ON YOUR OWN

Closing Comments John Reed (RST) & Michael Stephens (MSN)

UAS Uses at Airports                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

Presenters: 

Moderator: 

Coordinator:     

Tuesday October 26, 2021

WELCOME RECEPTION

Dinner on Your Own

Registration

Breakfast with Exhibitors 

Registration

Breakfast with Exhibitors

Industry Roundtable - Transitioning out of COVID

Presenters: FAA, A4A/Airlines, Airport, TSA

Moderator: 

Coordinator: 

BREAK

LUNCHEON-  Terminal Expansion (Multiple Airports)

All TIMES LISTED ARE IN CENTRAL TIME

DRAFT 2021 AAAE GLC Airports Conference Schedule 

Sunday October 24, 2021

Monday October 25, 2021

BREAK

Conference Welcome & Opening Remarks Melissa Cooper (MKC), Rebecca MacPherson & Sue Mowery-Schalk(FAA)

Registration for Environmental Workshop
Workshop Welcome & Opening Remarks - TBD 2nd VP GLC Chapter???

Wetlands Regulation Update  (lunch provided)   Simon Davies CEC Inc (speaker)  (moderator) 

Sustainable Master Plans- John Lengel, RS&H (Coordinator)

Community Engagement Strategies   Evan Barrett, Mead & Hunt (Coordinator)

BREAK

Recycling/Solid Waste - (Speaker) Evan Barrett, Mead & Hunt (Coordinator)

Solar - (speaker) Megan Murray, MQT (moderator)

Closing Remarks



 

3801 W. Ferguson Rd., Ste. 209  •  Fort Wayne, IN 46809-3194  •  Ph: 260-747-4146  •  Fax: 260-747-1762  •  

Web: www.fwairport.com 

 

 

2021 Environmental Workshop and Airports Conference 
 

The 2021 Environmental Workshop and Airport Conference is scheduled for Sunday October 24th 

through Tuesday October 26th in Rosemont, Illinois.  A virtual component will be available for all general 

sessions and will follow the Operations track.  We’ve reduced our room block by 50% and have 

committed to 60 rooms for each night, Sunday and Monday. 

A draft agenda for the workshop and conference is attached.  The planning committee is meeting 

monthly.  There are several open sessions for moderators and we are solidifying speakers for some of 

the sessions still.  We are asking for speakers to be able to attend the conference in person, some 

exceptions may be granted.  All moderators need to be able to attend in person.  If you are interested in 

getting involved in one of the topic sessions, please reach out to Michael or Katie.   

A save the date has been drafted and will be sent out by J&M.  Registration will open in August.  We will 

be using the AAAE app for this conference, data will be loaded by J&M.   

This winter a solicitation was shared for the Co-Chair position for 2022, Josh Burger with CMH has be 

selected to fill this role.          

 

 

Michael Stephens- Chair 
Katie Scherer- Co-Chair 
 
 
Attachments: 
Draft 2021 AAAE GLC Airports Conference Schedule 

http://www.fwairport.com/


Draft 4/26/2021 

 

GREAT LAKES CHAPTER, AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF AIRPORT 

EXECUTIVES, FOUNDATION  INVESTMENT POLICY DEFINITIONS, 

SCHEDULES AND HIGHLIGHTS 

 
Policy Definitions: 

 

Business & Finance Committee: The Treasurer shall serve as the Finance Committee Chair. 

 

Foundation Management Committee: The President, First Vice President, Second Vice 

President, Treasurer, and Immediate Past President shall   serve as the Management Committee. 

 

GLC/AAAE Foundation Operating Fund: Those funds expected to be spent supporting annual 

scholarships during the current budget cycle.  These monies shall be known as the GLC/AAAE 

Foundation Operating and Short-Term Reserve Fund. 

 

GLC/AAAE Foundation Investment Fund: Those funds expected to be maintained as long-term 

financial assets of the association. 

 

Policy Schedules: 

 

Quarterly Report Report to the Finance Committee 

 

A. Schedule of Investments 

B. Year to Date Interest Income 

C. Current Yield 

 

Semi-Annual Report Report Executive Committee 

 

A. Portfolio Content 

B. Investment strategy 

C. Portfolio performance 

D. Proposed changes to objectives and guidelines 

 

Annual Report     Report Executive Committee 

 

A. Executive Committee review for necessary revisions 

B. Annual financial plan that projects funds available for investment and date funds 

may be needed for operations or capital expenditure. 

 
 

Policy Highlights: 

 

Objectives of the policy are to preserve capital while optimizing the investment return and 

allowing for liquidity. This should be accomplished using a target asset mix of 50% equity funds 

and 50% fixed income/cash equivalents. A 10% variance from the target triggers a rebalancing 

consideration. 



 

 

 

POLICY  
and  

PRACTICES  
MANUAL 

 
Adopted - August 5, 2005, St. Charles, IL  
Amended - February 11, 2006, Kalamazoo, MI  
Amended - August 11, 2006, Kalamazoo, MI  
Amended - February 10, 2007, Winnipeg, MB  
Amended - January 26, 2008, Evansville, IN  
Amended - February 6, 2010, Branson, MO  
Amended - February 18, 2012, Appleton, WI  
Amended - July 26, 2013, Rapid City, SD  
Amended - August 8, 2014, Bellaire, MI  
Amended - February 27, 2016, South Bend, IN  
Amended - February 25, 2017, Grand Forks, ND 
Amended - February 27, 2021, Lincoln, NE 
Amended – July 30, 2021, Lincoln, NE 

 



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

1 

 

 

Table of Contents 

Section I Origin and Development       2 

Section II Executive Committee 3 - 9 

Section III Enrichment Programs 10 - 11 

Section IV Committees 12 - 19 

Section V Financial Practices 20 - 24 

Section VI Conferences 25 - 32 

Section VII Awards, Recognition and Resolutions 33 - 35 

Section VIII Chapter Advertising and Promotion 36 
 

Appendix A Chapter Past Presidents 

  



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

2 

 

Section I - Origin and Development 

The Great Lakes Chapter of the American Association of Airport Executives (AAAE) was 
formed in August 1968 as the result of a meeting called by Barry S. Craig, A.A.E., then 
Director of Dayton International Airport. Mr. Craig had invited representatives from the 
states representing the North Central Region of AAAE to assemble at the United Airlines 
terminal at O'Hare International Airport, Chicago, IL. At that meeting, the basic structure 
of the North Central Chapter of AAAE was formulated, a slate of officers and the state 
representative structure was agreed upon to form the Chapter Executive Committee. As 
a result of that formative meeting, a Constitution and By-Laws were prepared and 
adopted. 

The states representing the North Central Region in the Chapter include Illinois, Indiana, 
Iowa, Kentucky, Michigan, Minnesota, Missouri, Nebraska, North Dakota, Ohio, South 
Dakota, and Wisconsin. 

At the first regular meeting of the North Central Chapter held on October 8, 1968 in 
Norman, OK, it was agreed upon that those who joined the Chapter prior to December 
31, 1968 would be considered Charter Members.  At that meeting, it was also 
determined that the Chapter would be renamed to the Great Lakes Chapter 

Through the assistance of Robert S. Michael, A.A.E., then Director of General Mitchell 
Airport, Milwaukee, WI the Chapter was incorporated in the State of Wisconsin in May 
1971 as a non-stock corporation. 

In 1991, the Canadian Provinces of Ontario and Manitoba joined the Chapter. 

Founding Charter Member, Kenneth R. Newstrom, A.A.E. served the Chapter for 52 
years, including in the role of Executive Director.  During the February 2019 Winter 
Executive Committee Meeting, Chapter leadership honored Mr. Newstrom’s long-
standing commitment to the Chapter and voted to begin the process of issuing a Request 
for Qualification for an individual or company to perform the administrative and event 
planning functions that had been previously accomplished by the Executive Director 
position.  At the August 2019 Annual Conference in Evansville, IN, the Chapter voted to 
contract with J&M Business Solutions, LLC.  Mr. Newstrom continued as a Consultant 
until February 2020 to assist with this transition. 

Additional informational documents regarding the history of the Chapter have been 
documented and are included in the Officer’s Handbook, which is currently located on the 
Chapter’s website. 

A listing of Past Presidents is included in Appendix A at the end of this manual. This 
listing will be updated annually as an administrative action by the Executive 
Director/Administrator. 

  



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

3 

 

Section II - Executive Committee 

Structure and Responsibilities:  

The Chapter Executive Committee is made up of the three Chapter Officers (President, 
First Vice President, and Second Vice President), the Immediate Past President, the 
Executive Director/Administrator, Treasurer, 14 State and Provincial representatives, an 
appointed member of the Corporate Advisory Committee, and the AAAE Board members 
representing the Chapter. Advisory members to the Executive Committee are the Past 
Presidents of the Chapter who still qualify for AAAE Executive status and are employed or 
reside in the Chapter area. It is the responsibility of the Executive Committee to assure 
that the Chapter fulfills its obligations and responsibilities as a recognized Chapter of the 
AAAE, manage the business operation in a fiscally prudent fashion, provide the Chapter 
members the opportunity to experience education and enrichment programs to benefit 
their careers, and to provide Chapter members the opportunity to serve the Chapter the 
AAAE and the airports industry in the leadership roles available in the Chapter and AAAE. 

President  

The Chapter President shall be the principle Executive Officer of the Chapter and shall, in 
general, supervise all of its affairs and office appointments. 

Position responsibilities include: 
• Approve agendas for all Chapter meetings for their one-year term including the 

Chapter's Winter Executive Committee meeting, the Chapter meeting at the 
AAAE Annual Conference, Chapter Annual Conference and Chapter Airports 
Conference 

• Preside over all meetings. 

• Coordinate AAAE Chair and President's attendance and/or communication at 
Chapter meetings. 

• Develop discussion points and lead discussion at all Executive Committee formal 
and informal discussions including annual Executive Committee Breakfast at 
Chapter's Annual Conference. 

• Establish goals and objectives for the Chapter for their term in office and 
communicate to membership. 

• Work with the Executive Director/Administrator, Treasurer and the Chapter Officers 
to develop the annual budget for approval by the membership at the annual 
meeting in August. 

• Approve Chapter expenditures that fall within the established guidelines located in 
Section V of this document. 

• Review By-Laws and financial statements with Executive Director/Administrator 
and Treasurer to ensure compliance with practices and consider enhancing or 
addressing current issues. 

• Represent Chapter on AAAE Policy Review Council, including attendance at 
AAAE Board meetings. 

• Represent Chapter at AAAE Chapter Officers meeting each spring and Chapter 
Officers Luncheon at the NAC. 

• Designate Chapter Committee Chairs including Nominating, Conference Site 
Selection, Business & Finance Specialty conferences and others as necessary. 

• Represent Chapter at AAAE Annual Award luncheon. 

• Announce name of GLC member on AAAE Nominating Committee at General 
Membership meeting at AAAE Annual Conference. 

• Present GLC Award of Valor at appropriate luncheon at AAAE annual 
conference. 



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

4 

 

• In coordination with the Executive Director/Administrator, obtain sponsorships for 
the Winter Executive Committee meeting. 

• Serve on Conference Committee for AAAE annual and/or National Airports 

Conference, as necessary. 

• Serve as Chapter Officer coordinator for the following committee chairs and 

AAAE committee liaisons: 
• Accreditation & Board of Examiners (AAAE Liaison & Chapter Committee) 
• Finance and Administration/Business and Finance (AAAE Liaison and 

Chapter Committee) 
• IAAE Board (Outside Organization Liaison) 
• Nominating (AAAE Liaison & Chapter Committee) 
• Professional Development (Chapter Committee) 

• Provide end of the year remarks and acknowledgements at GLC Annual 
Conference. 

• Review and execute Executive Director's/Administrator’s contract in coordination 
with Officers and approval by membership. 

• Attend all GLC Conferences and assist with program as necessary. 

• Welcome new Airport Administrators and invite them to join Chapter. 

• Review MOU with AAAE for NAEDC and Non-Aeronautical Land Use Workshop. 

• Serve on the Foundation Management Committee overseeing GLC AAAE 

Foundation Investment Fund. 

First Vice President 
The Chapter First Vice President shall support the President in achieving their 
responsibilities and stand in for the President at necessary meetings as requested by the 
President or if the President is unable to carry out their duties.  
 
Position responsibilities include: 

• Serve on Chapter's Annual Conference committee. 
• Coordinate conference activities with Executive Director/Administrator and host 

airport. 
• Develop business program, secure speakers and assist with sponsorship efforts. 
• Obtain President's plaque/gift for presentation at the Chapter's annual 

conference. 
• Serve as Chapter Officer Coordinator for the following committee chairs and 

AAAE committee liaisons: 
• Airline Economics and Air Service (AAAE Liaison)  
• Airport Training (AAAE Liaison) 
• Annual Conference (AAAE Liaison & Chapter Committee)  
• Facilities & Technical Services (AAAE Liaison) 
• General Aviation (AAAE Liaison) 
• GLC Airports Conference (Chapter Committee) 
• GLC Annual Conference (Chapter Committee) 
• GLC Annual Conference Site Selection (Chapter Committee) 
• Industrial Aviation/Military Relations (AAAE Liaison) 
• International Facilitation (AAAE Liaison) 
• Operations/Safety/Planning/Emergency Management (OSPEM) (AAAE 

Liaison & Chapter Committee) 
• Transportation Security Services (AAAE Liaison) 

• Represent Chapter at AAAE Chapter Officer's meeting each spring and Chapter 
Officer's Luncheon at the NAC. 

• Serve on the Airports Conference Committee. 



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

5 

 

• Serve on Conference Committee for AAAE NAC, as necessary. 
• Review annually the Policy and Practices Manual and provide recommendations to 

President and Executive Committee. 
• Work with Executive Director/Administrator, Treasurer and Chapter Officers to 

develop the annual budget. 
• Serve on the Nominating Committee during deliberations for the incoming 

Second Vice-President. 

• Serve on the Foundation Management Committee overseeing GLC AAAE 

Foundation Investment Fund. 

Second Vice President  
The Chapter Second Vice President shall support the President and First Vice President 
in achieving their responsibilities and stand in at necessary meetings as requested by 
the President or First Vice President or if the President and/or Vice President is unable 
to carry out their duties.  
 
Position responsibilities include: 

• Serve as Chapter Officer Coordinator for the following committee chairs and 

AAAE committee liaisons: 
• Academic Relations (AAAE Liaison & Chapter Committee) 
• Corporate Advisory Committee (AAAE Liaison & Chapter Committee) 
• Diversity, Equity & Inclusion (AAAE Liaison & Chapter Committee) 
• Environmental Services (AAAE Liaison & Chapter Workshop Committee) 
• Membership (Chapter Committee) 
• NAC Conference Committee (AAAE Liaison) 
• National Airport Economic Development Conference (Chapter Committee) 
• US Contract Tower Association Board (Outside Organization Liaison) 
• Young Professionals (AAAE Liaison) 

• Serve as Chapter Parliamentarian to ensure meetings are governed in 
accordance with the Chapter By-Laws, Policy & Practices Manual, and Robert’s 
Rules of Order. 

• Serve on the National Airport Economic Development Conference Committee. 

• Work with the Executive Director/Administrator, Treasurer, and the Chapter 
Officers to develop the annual budget. 

• Represent Chapter at AAAE Chapter Officer's meeting each spring and Chapter 
Officer's Luncheon at the NAC. 

• Serve on Conference Committee for AAAE national airports conference (NAC). 
• Review GLC By-Laws and provide comment to President for consideration. 

Should the Officers/Executive Committee or the membership suggest 
amendment of the document, the Second Vice President shall ensure the 
recommended changes are appropriate, legally correct and properly 
documented. They will draft the amendment for review/approval by the 
Officers/Executive Committee and, pending their approval, will forward to the 
membership for approval. The amendment must then be forwarded to the AAAE 
office for review/approval before official adoption as the AAAE will ensure no 
conflict exist with the AAAE By-Laws. Following approval by AAAE, the process 
is complete. 

• Develop resolutions, in conjunction with the Executive Director/Administrator, for 

the AAAE National Conference, Chapter Annual meeting, and any other 

identified opportunity where the preparation of a resolution is deemed necessary 

by the Chapter Officers or the Executive Committee members.  All resolutions 

will be presented and approved by the Chapter membership.  



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

6 

 

• Serve on the Foundation Management Committee overseeing GLC AAAE 

Foundation Investment Fund. 

Immediate Past President 
The immediate Past-President will support the existing Officers and is a member of the 
Executive Committee.  
 
Position responsibilities include: 

• Welcome and lead discussion at Past President's Chapter breakfast during the 
GLC Annual Conference. 

• May attend and represent Chapter at National Association meetings. 
• Serve on the Chapter Business & Finance Committee. 

• Serve on the Foundation Management Committee overseeing GLC AAAE 

Foundation Investment Fund. 

Executive Director/Administrator 

The Executive Director/Administrator shall have the responsibility for providing 
management and administrative support for the Chapter as directed by the Chapter 
President. This position shall be titled as the Executive Director/Administrator and shall 
also serve as the Secretary for the Chapter. The duties and responsibilities shall include, 
but are not limited to those of the Secretary contained in the Constitution and By-Laws of 
the Chapter and in their contract. The Executive Director/Administrator is a paid position 
and the contract is negotiated/renewed consistent with the contract terms. The contract 
is reviewed by the Chapter Officers in May and presented to the membership for 
approval at the annual Chapter conference as necessary under the contract term limits.  

 
Position responsibilities include: 

• Attend all meetings, both regularly scheduled and special meetings of the 
Chapter and/or its Officers/Executive Committee and be responsible to secure 
and maintain a permanent record of the minutes of those meetings. 

• Maintain an accurate, up-to-date roster of the membership of the Chapter to include 
such information as the Officers/Executive Committee feels appropriate. 

• Submit statements/invoices to the persons owing money to the Chapter, including 
membership dues and receive and record all payments to the Chapter and 
collect delinquent accounts. 

• Deposit all funds received on behalf of the Chapter in one or more financial 
institutions approved by the Officers/Executive Committee. 

• Prepare periodic reports of financial nature as requested by the Chapter Officers, 
Treasurer, and/or the Business and Finance Committee Chair. 

• Pay Chapter expenses, with the exception of the Executive Directors/Administrator 
monthly contractual obligation. 

• Submit records and make an annual report of the Chapter financial operations, 
including assets and liabilities to the Officers/Executive Committee and the general 
membership for their review. The information shall include a 12 month financial 
report that shall include a 12 month actual vs. budget comparison for each line 
account contained in the budget, as well as a comparison of expenditures and 
revenue from the previous year. 

• In coordination with Officers and the Business and Finance Committee Chair, 
assist in development of a proposed annual budget for review by the 
membership at the annual business meeting each year covering the succeeding 
fiscal year. 



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

7 

 

• Arrange for publication and distribution to the membership information bulletins 
containing timely information and articles of interest to the members of the 
Chapter. 

• Maintain a Membership List for the Chapter on an annual basis. Corrections to 
the list shall be published as deemed appropriate. 

• Furnish news releases to appropriate newspapers covering the election of 
Officers and other significant Chapter events. 

• Provide assistance to standing and special committees of the Chapter as 
requested by the President. 

• Act as custodian of the Chapter convention display materials and equipment and 
arrange for its shipping, setup and removal at the Chapter annual conference, as 
requested by the President at the AAAE annual conference, and at other 
locations as approved by the President. 

• Provide appropriate interior office and storage space for the Chapter records and 
equipment placed in the Executive Director's/Administrator’s care, custody and 
control and necessary for them to perform the duties of the Executive 
Director/Administrator of the Chapter. 

• Assist President with welcoming new Airport Administrators to their area and 
providing information to join Chapter. 

• Staff exhibit booth during Annual AAAE conference if requested by President. 
• Provide registration services for annual conference, handle registration process, 

and coordinate arrangements with conference hotel and host city. Arrange for 
distribution of conference items, i.e. registrations, programs, sponsorship boards, 
etc., Chapter letterhead, By-Laws, resolutions, press releases and other mass 
mailings, etc. 

• Assist with ordering plaques and gifts with the approval of the President in 
support of Chapter Officers for public recognition of such issues as ARFF, Airport 
Economic Development, Environmental, and other awards. 

• Arrange a database of Officers, State representatives and general membership 
for direct e-mail distribution. Maintain the member database in the Chapter 
website for access by all. 

• Perform as the web master in coordination with the Officers, Executive Committee 
and other committees so as to maintain the Chapter website in a current status for 
reference by Chapter members. 

• Coordinate with the Regional Accreditation Examiner to track accreditation 
recipients for Chapter recognition, website updates and for the annual banquet 
program. Coordinate a congratulatory note on behalf of the Chapter Officers, 
Executive committee and Chapter members to newly accredited members. 

• Obtain committee reports in advance of planned Chapter meetings, and 
distribute to attendees. 

• Provide draft meeting minutes within three weeks of meeting and final meeting 
minutes within five weeks to Chapter Officers for final review prior to 
dissemination. 

• Coordinate with the Professional Development Committee (PDC) Chair to 
maintain records of scholarships provided. Store spreadsheets provided by the 
PDC to track recipients and amounts. 

• Assist with research to identify practices and procedures and membership 
services to aid the GLC in developing beneficial programs to maintain its 
leadership in member and industry services. 

• See that all notices to members or Officers/Executive Committee meetings are 
duly given in accordance with the By-Laws. 



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

8 

 

• Develop resolutions, in conjunction with the Executive Director/Administrator, for 
the AAAE National Conference, Chapter Annual meeting, and any other 
identified opportunity where the preparation of a resolution is deemed necessary 
by the Chapter Officers or the Executive Committee members.  All resolutions 
will be presented and approved by the Chapter membership.  

• Review MOU with AAAE for NAEDC and Non-Aeronautical Land Use Workshop 
 

Treasurer 
The Treasurer will support the existing Chapter Officers and is a member of the 
Executive Committee.   
 
Position responsibilities include: 

• Serve as Custodian of the Chapter financial records. 
• Have custody of and be responsible for all funds of the Chapter, provide receipts as 

necessary for any and all monies due and payable to/by the Chapter and shall 

deposit all such monies in the name of the Chapter in such banks, trust companies, 

or other depositories as agreed upon the by Chapter Officers. 

• Assure that all Chapter member dues, Conference registrations, and Sponsor and 

Exhibit fees are deposited in the appropriate accounts. 

• Work with the Executive Director/Administrator to prepare periodic reports of the 

Chapter financial status as requested by the Chapter Officers.  

• Coordinate with the Executive Director/Administrator to publish financial reports as 

necessary for inclusion in the report package for any regular and special meetings or 

at the request of the Chapter Officers and Executive Committee. 

• Coordinate with the Executive Director/Administrator to publish the annual budget for 
presentation to the Chapter Officers and Executive Committee at the Winter 

Executive Committee Meeting or as requested by the Chapter Officers. 

• Assure that the Chapter maintains adequate commercial liability, commercial auto, 

and crime liability insurance to protect the Chapter and its Officers. 

• Serve as the Chair of the Chapter Business and Finance Committee and be 

responsible for all funds and also perform all duties incidental to the Office of the 

Treasurer, duties directed by the By-Laws, and such other duties as may be 

assigned by the President.  

• Submit at each meeting of the general membership of the Chapter Officers and 

Executive Committee, other than special meetings, a complete report of the financial 

condition of the Chapter and of the receipts and disbursements, which have 

occurred since the prior report.  

• Serve on the Foundation Management Committee overseeing GLC AAAE 

Foundation Investment Fund 

 
State and Provincial Representatives  
The State/Provincial Representatives are a key component to the success of the Great 
Lakes Chapter and reflect the Chapter's leadership efforts to maintain a direct, grass 
roots contact with both existing and prospective members within the aviation and airport 
management community. State/Provincial Representatives serve as members of the 
Chapter's Executive Committee and serve for two-year terms as outlined in Article IV of 
the Chapter's Constitution and By-Laws. 
 
Duties and Responsibilities include: 

• Each State/Provincial Representative should make every effort to attend the 
following meetings: 
• Chapter Winter Executive Committee Meeting. 



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

9 

 

• Chapter General Membership Meeting held at the AAAE Annual Conference. 
• Executive Committee Breakfast held at the Chapter Annual Conference. 

• Chapter General Membership and Business Meeting held at the Chapter Annual 
Conference. 

• Act as the Chapter's primary liaison with the respective State/Provincial airport 
management associations. 

• Represent the Chapter's interest and position on national and regional aviation 
issues and act as a primary information point for aviation issues when the state 
organization/association should be made aware of critical policy and/or political 
aviation-related items. 

• Coordinate with the Chapter Membership and Academic Relations Committee 
Chair to promote Chapter membership.  

• Assist with member retention in their State/Province and in maintaining accurate 
and up to date information on the Chapter members in that State/Province. 

• Assist the Chapter with collection of dues by contacting delinquent members in 
his/her State/Province as necessary. 

• Assist with solicitation of sponsor/exhibitor participation for the Chapter Annual 
Conference and/or specialty conferences. 

• Assist with the Chapter Annual Conference preparation and planning when the 
annual conference is to be held in the representative's respective State/Province. 

• Assist a specialty conference committee as needed when a Chapter sponsored 
specialty conference is to be held in the representative's State/Province. 

• Serve on committees as requested by the Chapter Officers. 
• Serve as a speaker or moderator at Chapter and/or AAAE conferences. 
• Provide input into the conduct and direction of the Chapter's activities and 

management practices. 
• Provide mentoring to others within the Chapter as able. 
• Provide information regarding new Airport Administrators in their State/Providence 

to the Chapter President. 

 
  



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

10 

 

Section III — Enrichment Programs 

AAAE Certification Programs 
The AAAE is devoted to advancement of the interests of the individual in airport 
management, and the enrichment of the profession for the benefit of aviation of the 
aviation industry. In 1954, AAAE established a professional designation program for 
those individuals serving the industry that demonstrated a recognized level of knowledge 
and ability. 

The AAAE Accreditation Program offers aviation professionals significant benefits and 
rewards the member and their immediate family through a scholarship program which is 
financially supported both by AAAE and the Chapter.   

A member of the AAAE can apply for candidacy when they have a minimum one-year of 
full time civil airport management experience. To receive designation as an Accredited 
Airport Executive (A.A.E.), the member must have three years of airport management 
experience and complete a three-part proficiency and testing process.  The three-part 
process includes: 

1. a writing requirement 
2. a multiple choice examination; and 

3. a peer interview 

The person responsible to administer the accreditation process within the Chapter is the 
Chair of the Accreditation Committee. They also serves as the AAAE Regional Examiner 
responsible for supervision of the AAAE accreditation process in the Chapter (AAAE, 
North Central Region). 

The Chapter is dedicated to the successful completion of the A.A.E. process for the 
AAAE members within the North Central Region.  Accredited Chapter members 
volunteer to serve as mentors to assist with preparation for the peer interview and to sit 
on the formal interview panels.  Chapter members navigating this process are eligible to 
apply for scholarship funding from the Chapter. 

In addition to the Accreditation process, AAAE offers Certification Programs to include: 
Certified Member, Airport Certified Employee, Airport Rescue Firefighter, Airport Security 
Coordinator, and International Aerodrome Certified Employee.  These programs are 
eligible for Chapter members to apply to receive financial assistance from the Chapter. 

Professional Development 

The Chapter offers a financial assistance program to members and to college students 
attending colleges/universities within the Chapter region and majoring in Airport/Aviation 
Administration. Applications may be obtained from the committee or downloaded at the 
Chapter's website.  
 
Member Program  

Financial Awards are available to all Chapter members within the Great Lakes Chapter, 
who have been active members in good standing for a period of at least 12 months. 
Examples of the types of awards available are AAAE membership dues assistance, 
Conferences/CEU Assistance, and scholarships (for college level courses and AAAE 
Certification programs). Other forms of assistance will be evaluated by the committee on 
a case-by-case basis. 



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

11 

 

Student Program  

Assistance is available to any student pursuing a degree in Airport/Aviation 
Administration at a college/university within the Great Lakes Chapter. Students that are 
members of the Chapter will be given scoring preference in the competition for awards. 
Examples of the types of awards available are: AAAE membership dues assistance, 
scholarships (for college level courses and AAAE Certification programs), and 
conference assistance. 

Mentoring  

In addition to the assistance to those members pursuing the A.A.E. Accreditation as 
outlined above, the Chapter offers mentoring to new Chapter members. Mentoring is an 
informal, voluntary program whereby Chapter members who sponsor a new member to 
the Chapter provide advice and assistance on becoming involved in Chapter committee 
work or becoming a state/provincial representative. 

 
Mentoring can also extend into the workplace whereby members may seek advice and 
counsel from fellow members on problems or issues that they may have dealt with 
during their previous work experience. 
 
Historically, mentoring of new members has occurred with some success, but without a 
formalized program and intentional efforts, the experience has not been consistent for all 
new Chapter members.  The Membership Committee Chair will begin to develop a 
program to ensure that all new members are assigned a mentor to assist the new 
member as they navigate the Chapter for their first year. 

Intern Programs  

A number of airports within the Chapter offer internships to college students or recent 
graduates on both a part-time or full time basis. These may be paid or non-paid 
positions. Part-time programs are frequently summer job opportunities. Some airports 
maintain regular internships where local students can essentially maintain part-time 
positions while attending school.  

 

AAAE provides an opportunity for the Chapter to receive a Chapter incentive of $2,500 
to financially support and encourage intern programs.  The Chapter is responsible to 
serve as the liaison between the airports within the Chapter and AAAE by administering 
the application/selection process to disseminate the funds.   

 

Student Chapters  

The AAAE recognizes Student Chapters at colleges/universities that offer courses or 
degree programs in the field of Aviation/Airport Administration. The Great Lakes Chapter 
is fortunate to have several such schools within our region. An AAAE-approved Student 
Chapter must have a faculty advisor; have a minimum of 5 members and a President, 
Vice President and a Secretary/Treasurer. The Great Lakes Chapter was the first AAAE 
entity to adopt and publish a Student Chapter manual. That manual was subsequently 
used as a reference by AAAE to develop its Student Chapter publication that is utilized 
by all Regions, including the Great Lakes Chapter. The Chapter offers financial 
assistance to the Student Chapters in our region to encourage the students to participate 
in both the Chapter and AAAE annual conferences, or other AAAE or Chapter 
sponsored seminars/programs. Student Chapters that have an interest in receiving 
financial support shall contact the Professional Development Committee Chair.  
  



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

12 

 

Section IV — Committees 

Chapter committees are at the call of the President in accordance with the Chapter’s 
By-Laws. There are basically two types of committees necessary for the conduct of 
Chapter business/activities and our working relationship with the parent organization — 
the American Association of Airport Executives (AAAE). The two committee types are: 
Special Committees and Standing Committees. In addition to the committees, there are 
a number of National AAAE Committees that need Chapter representation. This 
representation is accomplished by the National Committee Liaisons. 

Special Committees  
Special committees are those committees established at the call of the Chapter 
President to deal with an issue, event or topic to be reviewed by the committee, whose 
subsequent recommendation is brought to the Chapter Executive Committee and/or 
membership for adoption or approval. Special committees are temporary in nature and 
may be dissolved when the work of the committee is considered complete or no longer 
necessary. 

Standing Committees  
Standing committees are those committees necessary to conduct the business activities 
of the Chapter or committees that have been established by vote of either the Executive 
Committee or the membership. 

The following lists the current Standing Committees, not including Conference & 
Workshop Committees that are covered in Section VI, Conferences: 

• Academic Relations Committee 

• Accreditation Committee and Board of Examiners 

• Business and Finance Committee 

• Corporate Advisory Committee 

• Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Committee 

• GLC Annual Conference Site Selection Committee 

• Membership Committee 

• Nominating Committee 

• Professional Development Committee 

 
Academic Relations Committee 
The primary objective of this committee is to support college/universities that offer 
courses or degree programs in the field of Aviation/Airport Administration within our 
region. This committee has the responsibility to provide a liaison from the Chapter to 
these Student Chapters in order to provide resources and develop relations and 
opportunities for the student members. 
 
Accreditation Committee & Board of Examiner  
The primary objective of this committee is to support and promote accreditation both 
regionally and nationally, and to assist Chapter members in attaining this goal by offering 
advice, encouragement and arranging for mentoring with a Chapter A.A.E.  
 
The Accreditation Committee Chair has the responsibility to ensure successful candidates 
receive acknowledgement and recognition upon achieving the AAE status. The Chapter 
Committee Chair keeps the membership informed of statistics related to the number of 
accredited members and the number of persons actively working toward Accreditation. 



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

13 

 

They also report to the membership on the accreditation process and any potential 
changes or amendments to that process. 
 
The Chapters Regional Examiner for AAAE usually serves as Accreditation Committee 
Chair and is responsible for scheduling and conducting all final interviews in the Chapter.  
The Regional Examiner arranges for the necessary panelists to meet and conduct those 
interviews.  They must also assure that the accredited panelists, who participate in those 
interviews, are briefed on the most recent AAAE policy and requirements for the portion 
of the examination process.  Additionally, they have the responsibility, along with several 
other BOE members, to grade the written management paper submitted by accreditation 
candidates. 
 
The AAAE BOE consists of six regional (Chapter) members, three at large members, 
and one Chair position.  To be eligible to serve on the BOE, one must be an Executive 
Member (A.A.E.) and maintain the Executive Member status through their term.   
 
The AAAE By-Laws indicate that the Examiners shall serve three-year terms, which can 
be reduced by the BOE Chair, if necessary, to ensure that at least two regional and one 
at-large position expires each year.  As either regional or at-large positions become 
available on the BOE, it is suggested that each Chapter solicit expressions of interest 
from their Chapter members and forward two to three names to the BOE Chair.  
Recommendations should include resumes that show experience and current job 
responsibilities and letters of support from the nominee’s employer for the time and 
travel necessary to serve on the BOE.   
 
After recommendations are reviewed, the BOE Chair may conduct an interview with 
each nominee and forward their names along with the BOE Chair’s recommendation to 
the AAAE Executive Committee.  When reviewing requests, every attempt is made to 
maintain on overall balance on the BOE that reflects the range and diversity of the 
membership.  Some of the guidelines considered are career time and experience, 
number of years accredited, airport size and type, and position at the airport. 
 
Business and Finance Committee 

On July 26, 2013, the Chapter voted to create a Business and Finance Committee to 
replace the former Finance Committee. The Treasurer shall serve as the Business and 
Finance Committee Chair. They must be an A.A.E. and have been a Chapter member for 
a minimum of five years. They shall agree to serve a multi-year term (3-5 yrs.). The 
Committee shall also include the Chapter's Immediate Past President and two other 
Chapter members excluding Officers. Those committee members shall provide balanced 
representation of the Chapter States/Provinces. The Committee's purpose is to provide 
redundancy in Chapter business and record keeping and to review, advise and assist the 
Executive Director/Administrator with annual budget development and reporting of annual 
budget recommendations.  

 

The Business and Finance Committee Chair will also have access to and check signing 
authority for all Chapter financial accounts and be familiar with Chapter business and 
records in order to safeguard the organization and provide oversight to ensure the 
Executive Director/Administrator is fulfilling their duties. The Committee Chair shall have 
the authority to contract for professional audit services if recommended by the Committee 
with the approval of the Chapter Officers. 



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

14 

 

The Committee Chair will receive and review quarterly financial reports if deemed 
necessary in addition to financial reports submitted by the Executive 
Director/Administrator at the Chapter Winter Executive Committee Meeting, the Chapter 
General Membership Meeting held at the AAAE Annual Conference and the General 
Membership and Business Meeting held at the Chapter Annual Conference. 
The basic duties and responsibilities of the Business and Finance Committee are to: 

1. Assist, as needed, in the development of the annual budget of the Chapter. 
2. Monitor the cash disposition, accounting, bookkeeping procedures and functions 

administered by the Executive Director. 
3. At the discretion of the Committee Chair, participate in the budget process and 

make recommendations regarding unusual, unexpected, or potentially 
controversial activities, expenditures or revenues. 

4. Recommend professional review of Chapter financial records when deemed 
prudent. 

5. Complete and file required tax forms, i.e. 990. 
 

Corporate Advisory Committee 
Chapter members who are employed by various professional, service and vendor firms 
serving the airports/aviation industry and who support the Chapter as sponsors and/or 
exhibitors at Chapter and Chapter/AAAE cosponsored conferences, seminars and 
workshops may choose to be members of the Chapter Corporate Advisory Committee. 
Those Chapter members who participate shall select a Committee Chair and Co-chair to 
serve overlapping terms for purposes of succession continuity. Either the Chair or Co-chair 
will be expected to attend and report to the Officer/Executive Committee during any formal 
Chapter meeting regarding issues pertaining to corporate participation at Chapter events 
and/or any issues the committee feels could be of benefit, interest or concern to the 
Chapter and the airports/aviation industry. A member of the Corporate Advisory 
Committee, as recommended by the Nominating Committee and elected by the Chapter 
Membership, will serve as a member of the Executive Committee. 
 
Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Committee 

The mission of the Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Committee (DEI) is to promote and 
facilitate inclusion with respect to race, gender, sexual orientation, age, gender identities 
and expressions, and disabilities into all organizational levels of the aviation industry. 
The Committee will lead advocacy efforts for diversity, equity, and inclusion and work to 
enhance cultural competence and seek to create an overall more inclusive culture within 
the Great Lakes Chapter and the aviation industry.  
 
Annually the Committee will strive to provide DEI topics for annual chapter meetings and 
develop plans of engagement for educational entities from elementary age up through 
institutions of higher learning. The Chapter DEI will also engage with the National DEI 
Committee to implement and optimize programs and initiatives created by them.  
 
GLC Annual Conference Site Selection Committee 
Conference site solicitation is the responsibility of the Annual Conference Site Selection 
Committee. The Chair of the Committee is designated by the Chapter President and has 
traditionally been a Chapter Past President, and members of the committee typically 
include at least one Past President. The incoming President designates members of the 
committee at the annual conference. The Executive Director/Administrator and Treasurer 
are normally members of the committee. 
 
The Committee shall review and refine the Request for Proposal (RFP) after the annual 
conference and send out to interested parties no later than October 1 of each calendar 



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

15 

 

year. A RFP is typically furnished to potential candidate cities/airports to assist them in 
responding to the committee in a uniform fashion. It is the Committee Chair's 
responsibility to identify potential conference sites and seek a willing airport sponsor. 
The committee is typically working on the selection of a site at least two years out. The 
committee will request the return of the RFPs no later than December 15 to permit a 
review of the RFPs to determine if all responding candidates are qualified. The 
committee will rank the responding candidate sites and provide a recommendation of the 
top two sites at the Winter Executive Committee Meeting.  The Committee Chair may 
invite the top two candidates to the Winter Executive Committee Meeting to make a 
presentation. The invitations should go out no less than 30 days prior to the meeting. 
The attendees at the Winter Executive Committee meeting will vote on a conference site 
for the upcoming conference.  
 

Membership Committee 

The primary objective of this committee is to work with the State and Provincial 

Representatives to recruit new membership to the Chapter.  Additionally, the Committee 

should work to identify and promote the benefits of the chapter to the members as well 

as provide input and direction to Chapter Officers for membership benefit opportunities.    

 

Nominating Committee  

The following criteria for Chapter Officer Candidates shall be used by the nominating 

committee for evaluating the qualifications and accomplishments of candidates standing for 

office within the Great Lakes Chapter of the American Association of Airport Executives to 

enable the Nominating Committee to recommend the highest and best-qualified candidate for 

each office within the Chapter to the membership. Candidates should, at a minimum, have 

clearly distinguished themselves in the accomplishment of the following criteria: 

1. Candidates for office in the Great Lakes Chapter - AAAE must be actively engaged 

in the management or administration of a public airport. 

2. Candidates must be in good standing in the Great Lakes Chapter of the 

American Association of Airport Executives. 

3. Candidates for all Chapter Officer positions shall have attained accredited airport 

executive status with the American Association of Airport Executives. 

4. Candidates must have exemplary professional and ethical standards. 

5. Candidates for all offices shall have demonstrated service to the Chapter in 

several of the following areas: 

a. Serving on one or more Chapter committees. 

b. Chairing one or more Chapter committees or Chapter conferences. 

c. Performing duties on behalf of the Chapter at AAAE meetings or other related 

aviation meetings. 

d. Serving as a speaker at Chapter conferences or seminars. 

e. Serving as a moderator at Chapter conferences or seminars. 

f. Representing the Chapter on a national committee. 

g. Organizing or performing duties or special assignments in support of a 

Chapter seminar, function or conference. 

h. Performing special assignments or projects in support of Chapter activities or 

programs. 

i. Serving on AAAE accreditation oral exam boards. 



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

16 

 

j. Service within state aviation organizations, preferably in a leadership position 

(where applicable). 

k. Speaking at a national conference or specialty seminar. 

 

In evaluating the areas of service by the candidates for office, the Nominating 

Committee may consider the quality and value of chapter service as compared with the 

quantity of Chapter service. 

1. Candidates should be able to demonstrate that they have public speaking experience 

and/or experience in testifying before local, state and national governing bodies. 

2. Candidates shall demonstrate that they have the ability through their employer to 

travel and attend meetings in support of the Chapter, including  Chapter Annual 

Conference, GLC Airports Conference, Winter Executive Committee Meeting, Chapter 

Officer's meeting held in Washington, DC every spring, and Chapter business 

meeting at the AAAE Annual Conference. If a candidate has authorization to 

participate but lacks travel funds, Chapter financial assistance may be available 

through approved travel allowance practices. 

3. Special recognition shall be given to the Chapter's Cultural Diversity Resolution 

adopted May 31, 1993, which strives to provide for cultural and gender diversity in the 

makeup of the membership, officers and Executive Committee. 

4. Candidates for a Chapter officer position shall indicate their interest every year. 

Expressions of interest shall not carry over from year to year. Further, all potential 

candidates for Chapter offices would be well advised to prepare a resume of Chapter 

event attendance, participation, etc. that follows the outline in 5. a-k above, and to 

keep it updated and to no more than two typewritten pages in length. The "Expression 

of Interest" shall be in letterform accompanied by a resume (no more than two pages) 

and a written statement from the candidate's employer supporting the candidacy and 

also the travel and expenses involved in serving in the office. All submittals shall be 

transmitted electronically to the Committee.  Successful candidates shall provide a 

digital photo for inclusion on the Chapter website and/or marketing and media uses.   

5. The Great Lakes Chapter Nominating Committee will solicit "Expressions of Interest", 

along with supporting documentation, for Chapter officer positions. The solicitation 

shall be by e-mail and/or other electronic/virtual platforms, no more than 180 days and 

no less than 15 days prior to the annual Chapter conference, normally held during the 

first week in August of each year. At the General Membership meeting of that 

conference the results of the Nominating Committee's deliberations will be made 

public. The slate of officers of the Chapter for the upcoming year (term starting 

immediately after the Annual Banquet), as well as the nominee for the AAAE Board of 

Directors (term starting immediately following the end of the AAAE Annual Conference 

the following spring) and the name of the person, if any, being placed into 

consideration for Secretary/Treasurer for the national organization will be announced 

at that time. A candidate for an at-large seat on the AAAE Board of Directors who 

wishes the Chapter's endorsement shall make that request at or prior to the Winter 

Board meeting of the Great Lakes Chapter.  

6. The Chapter's representative to the AAAE National Nominating Committee is 

typically the Chair of the GLC AAAE Nominating Committee.  The Chapter’s 



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

17 

 

representative on the AAAE Nominating Committee shall make the official 

nominations for the Chapter's National Board candidate and for any Chapter 

candidate for the office of national Secretary/Treasurer. Candidates for the national 

Board of Directors shall, at a minimum, be members in good standing of the national 

organization and shall be accredited members. To be eligible for consideration for 

the AAAE Secretary/Treasurer position the candidate must have completed at least 

one two-year term as a member of the national Board of Directors.   

It is the objective of the Chapter to have multiple qualified members to serve on the 

Executive Committee of AAAE. To that end, unless there are no interested or qualified 

candidates or other extenuating circumstances approved by the Chapter Executive 

Committee, the Chapter will nominate individuals to serve on the AAAE Board of 

Directors for only one two-year term. 

Additionally, the Nominating Committee will nominate a member of the Corporate 

Advisory Committee to serve on the Executive Committee during the Chapter Annual 

Conference Business Meeting.  

 

Operations, Safety, Planning & Emergency Management Committee 

The primary objective of this committee is to administer, select, and work with AAAE to 

advertise the ARFF Award of Valor, as well as advertise for the Chapter’s Meritorious 

Service Award. 

Professional Development Committee  
On May 20, 2001, the Chapter voted to create and budget for a Professional 
Development Committee (PDC). The PDC is a standing committee to serve as a means 
to implement and administer the Professional Development Assistance and Student 
Membership Programs. The Chapter President appoints the Chair of the Professional 
Development Committee. PDC members are then solicited by the PDC Chair. Long term 
service as the Chair can aid in the processing of the applications/requests. 

In 2005, the Chapter voted to combine the Professional Development Assistance and 
Student Chapter Programs. The committee may also recommend assistance to 
recognized Student Chapters for members that wish to attend conferences or programs 
to further their education, networking ability, and explore opportunities for internships in 
the field of airport management. Student Chapters and/or members that have an interest 
in receiving financial support shall apply for assistance from the Professional 
Development Committee. 

The committee reviews applications for professional development assistance from both 
the member and student categories along with requests to support AAAE Student 
Chapters. The Chapter may fund the combined Professional Development/Student 
Chapter Program annually through the budget review and approval process.  

A continuous review and evaluation process should be implemented to ensure the 
program is able to respond to the changing needs of the Chapter. The money approved 
annually for funding would be used to fund the specific programs listed below. Requests 
from GLC members and students for other types/categories of assistance may be 
considered on a case-by-case basis.  The programs should be reviewed and approved 
annually by the Executive Committee, at which time the appropriation of funds would be 



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

18 

 

established for the next program year. Such approval should consider past performance 
of program activities, past and current participation and ultimate benefit to the individuals 
as well as the Chapter.  

Reimbursements will be awarded to members upon confirmation of successful 
completion of a certificate or examination program. Successful completion of the 
program will be based on the completion of training course work and/or the passing of 
an examination. The maximum amount of money to be requested and awarded through 
the professional development assistance program to any one individual in a program 
year is $1,500, subject to the annual budget approval process. Candidates would have 
the ability to receive reimbursement 12 months past or 12 months prior to the event for 
which assistance is requested.  This will give the candidates a two-year opportunity and 
increase participation to complete a program based on the award dates. (Example: An 
applicant could apply for reimbursement for a recently, successfully completed 
course/conference or they could apply for an upcoming course/conference and receive 
reimbursement once they demonstrate a successful completion - as long as the 
successful completion is within 12 months of the award date.) All award recipients under 
the Member program must meet the eligibility requirements of the Great Lakes Chapter 
Constitution and By-Laws and be active members in good standing prior to applying for 
assistance. 
 
The following list of assistance awards that offer the greatest cost benefit to the Chapter 
while maintaining its objectives are available for the Member/Delegate Program: 

1. Conference and CEU Assistance Program - The Conference Assistance 
Program could be coupled with the Continued Education Units or CEU 
Assistance Program. Conference and/or course registration, conference and/or 
course materials, travel, and lodging would be eligible costs for reimbursement.  

2. Scholarship - Under the scholarships program, members would be allowed to use 
the money for master/graduate or undergraduate course work toward the 
completion of a degree in Airport/Aviation Administration or AAAE 
Training/Certification Programs. In the case of awards of AAAE Certification 
Programs, the funding would be provided upon successful completion of the 
course. 

3. National Membership Dues Assistance - This program would provide financial 
assistance for GLC members to become A.A.A.E. members.  

 
The following list of assistance awards that offer the greatest cost benefit to the Chapter 
while maintaining its objectives are available for the Student Member Program: 

1. National Membership Dues Assistance - Students would pay the GLC 
Membership Dues to become a GLC Member, The GLC would then pay the 
student's National dues. This would increase GLC membership, allow the 
students to participate in GLC offered programs, and allow the students the 
desired benefit of membership privileges (Airport Report and Job Listings). 

2. Scholarships 
a. Scholastic scholarships would be awarded to student members enrolled in a 

recognized Aviation/Airport Administration program at a college or university 
in the Great Lakes Chapter. The program cannot offer financial assistance 
toward direct flight training fees to pilots in the field of airport management. 

b. Scholarships may also be award for completion of an AAAE Certification 
program, with the funding provided upon successful completion of the course. 

3. Conference Sponsorship - GLC student members would be eligible to receive 
reimbursement for conference attendance.  Conference and/or course 



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

19 

 

registration, conference and/or course materials, travel, and lodging would be 
eligible costs for reimbursement. 

 
Detailed information regarding Conference and Workshop Committees are located in 
Section VI.  
 
National Committee Liaisons  
Liaisons are President-appointed representatives of the Chapter responsible for 
gathering and reporting information from the Chapter for input to an AAAE committee of 
the same topic of interest and back to the Chapter on the issues and initiatives 
discussed at the national level. Examples of those committees are: 

• AAAE Annual Conference 

• Academic Relations  

• Airline Economics and Air Service  

• Board of Examiners  

• Corporate  

• Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion 

• Environmental Services  

• Facilities and Technical Services 

• Finance and Administration  

• Foundation  

• General Aviation  

• IAAE  

• Industrial Aviation/Military Relations  

• International Facilitation 

• Operations, Safety, Planning, and Emergency Management 

• Training 

• Transportation Security Services  

• USCTA Board 

• Young Professionals  

The Liaisons of those committees listed above attend the National Committee meetings, 
both regular and special, and at their discretion may become as active within that 
committee as they wish. However, their principal responsibility is to report to the 
committee on behalf of the Chapter and report the National Committee 
activities/initiatives back to the Chapter. Should a Liaison or Chapter member feel that a 
topic requires additional attention of the Chapter, a request should be made to the 
Chapter President for a Special Committee to be formed in accordance with the section 
above.  The list of Liaisons will be reviewed during the Chapter Annual Business 
meeting to confirm commitment. 

  



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

20 

 

Section V - Financial Practices 

Checking Accounts 
The Treasurer manages the Treasurer’s Operating checking account and the 
Conference Fund checking accounts for Chapter business activities.  The Treasurer is 
also responsible for oversight of the Executive Director/Administrator checking account.  

Treasurer’s Operating Checking Account 
This is an operating checking account from which regular Chapter operating expenses 
could be paid. These include, but are not limited to, telephone bills, postage and 
shipping fees, office supplies, Treasurer expenses, Officer travel reimbursements, 
equipment purchases, scholarship donations, awards and contributions, purchase of 
resale inventory, Executive Director/Administrator fees, etc. 
 
Deposits to this account include the following income sources: 

1. Member dues 
2. Net proceeds from specialty conferences 
3. Net proceeds from the Chapter Annual Conference, Airports Conference, and 

Environmental Workshop 
4. Sponsor donations in support of the Winter Executive Committee Meeting 

activities and the Chapter General Membership Meeting held at the AAAE 
Annual Conference 

5. Interest earnings for the account 

The Treasurer is authorized to pay all normal operating expenses as approved in the 
budget and incurred by the Chapter without special authorization. The Chapter Officers 
will approve non-budgeted expenses over $1,000. 

The balance of the General Fund Account is kept in the realm of $30,000.00. If revenues 
received from items 2 and 3 above, when deposited, will raise the account balance 
significantly above that amount, a portion of that revenue will be deposited in the 
Chapter Business Savings account. 

GLC Annual Conference Fund Account and Airport Operations and Maintenance 
Conference/Environmental Workshop Fund Account 
A checking account is established to handle revenue and expenses for each of the 
Chapter conferences. A $3,000.00 "seed money" balance is carried forward each year to 
cover initial expenses and/or deposits as we move toward the next annual conference. 
 
These accounts are not currently being utilized.  Seed money is transferred by the 
Treasurer prior to the conference to the Executive Director/Administrator’s Operating 
Checking account and accounted for in a separate Quick Books register and reported to 
the Treasurer monthly. 
 
Expenses paid for the Conferences/Workshops include, but are not limited to, deposits 
and/or payments to restaurants, hotels, parks, museums, hotel master accounts, 
transportation costs, entertainment expenses, refunds etc. related to each year's 
conference. 
 

Expenses paid for the Airport Operations & Maintenance Account include, but are not 
limited to, hotel master accounts, payments to restaurants, transportation costs, refunds 
etc. related to each year's conference. 



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

21 

 

Deposits for these accounts include: 
1. Pre-registration and registration fees. 
2. Sponsor contributions. 
3. Exhibitor fees. 
4. Interest, if earned. 

 
After the close of each conference when all income and expenses are reviewed and 
accounted for, the Executive Director/Administrator prepares an Income and Expense 
Report for that conference. At the direction of the Treasurer, the net proceeds shown on 
that report are transferred to the Treasurer’s Operating Checking Account and/or the 
Chapter Business Savings Account. The Income and Expense Report is then usually 
presented at the Winter Executive Committee meeting. 
 
Executive Director/Administrator’s Operating Checking Account 
In addition to the above checking accounts managed by the Chapter Treasurer and 
Business and Finance Committee, the Treasurer has authorized the Executive 
Director/Administrator to open a Chapter checking account, accessible by the Treasurer, 
that allows the Executive Director/Administrator to receive and disperse fund related to 
the following: 

1. Receipt of GLC member dues. 
2. Receipt of income and payment of expenses related to Chapter Conferences 

managed in accordance with the Executive Director/Administrator’s contract with 
the Chapter. 

3. General operating expenses. 

Income and expenses related to the above account activity are regularly reported to the 
Treasurer and at such time as deemed appropriate by the Treasurer dues received and 
revenues in excess of expenses resulting from the managed conferences are to be 
transferred to the appropriate accounts managed by the GLC Treasurer. 

The Treasurer and Executive Director/Administrator will agree on an appropriate 
minimum balance to be maintained in the Executive Director/Administrator’s Operating 
checking account.  The Treasurer may elect to transfer funds from the Chapter’s 
Business Savings or Treasurer’s Operating Checking accounts as may be necessary to 
maintain the agreed upon minimum balance of the Executive Director/Administrator’s 
Operating Checking account. 

GLC Scholarship Foundation Fund 

The GLC Scholarship Foundation Fund is spent supporting annual scholarships.  The 
GLC Foundation Fund are funds expected to be maintained as long-term financial 
assets of the Chapter.  The Treasurer, President, First Vice President, Second Vice 
President, and Immediate Past President will serve as the Foundation Management 
Committee.  The GLC Foundation Investment Policy identifies the definitions, schedules 
and highlights in regards to how the Chapter will support a scholarship endowment fund.  

 

Savings and Investments  
The Chapter currently holds a Business Savings Account that is considered readily 
available cash over and above the Treasurer’s Operating Checking Account for 
contingencies and/or emergencies. In August 2000, it was recommended by the 
Executive Committee that some of the "surplus" savings funds be invested in one or 



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

22 

 

more certificates of deposit to increase earnings. In January 2001, a sum of $60,000 
was transferred into a CD. Those funds have remained untouched to date. 

The Treasurer, after discussion with the President, may withdraw funds from the 
Business Savings Account, if necessary to sustain an appropriate minimum balance in 
the Treasurer’s Operating Checking Account should such action become necessary due 
to lack of sufficient income from the sources described above. As a result of action of the 
Executive Committee on 2/19/2005, $60,000 will be placed in a “restricted reserve” and 
$40,000 will be placed in an "operational reserve". The availability of the “restricted 
reserve” requires a two-third majority vote of the Chapter members present at a stated 
Chapter meeting. The availability of the "operational reserve requires a majority vote of 
the chapter members present at a stated Chapter meeting. A “selective drawdown” of 
any assets in excess of $100,000 should be considered in the annual budgeting 
process.  As a result of the international COVID-19 pandemic in 2020, the Chapter 
donated $100,000 to support the National AAAE Organization. 
 
Authorized Signatories 
In order to maintain continuity of operations, the Treasurer and one of the Chapter 
Officers are listed as authorized signatories on all Chapter Financial accounts.  The 
Chapter Officer responsible for acting as an authorized signatory will be on a rotating, 
four-year cycle.  The Executive Director/Administrator is an authorized signatory on the 
Executive Director/Administrator’s Operating Checking account. 

Distribution and Retention of Financial Reports 
The Treasurer provides financial reports at all regular meetings of the Executive 
Committee and the general membership as required by the By-Laws. The Treasurer also 
maintains a permanent record of all financial reports as a part of the meeting minutes 
and report packages provided to the Executive Committee and the members attending 
those meetings. 
 
The Treasurer and Business and Finance Committee should consider budgeting a 
financial review of all financial and tax reports every three years. 

Travel Reimbursement for Officers and Treasurer. 
The Chapter currently authorizes the following annual travel assistance amounts for the 
Chapter Officers.  Annual Allowance Amounts: (based on budget) 

President   up to $5,000.00 
First Vice President  up to $3,000.00 
Second Vice President  up to $1,500.00 
Treasurer     up to $5,000.00 

Chapter Officers and the Treasurer are encouraged to use whatever local airport 
funding/support exists to cover all or part of the related Chapter expenses. It is the 
intention that this allowance would only be used to assist those persons listed above that 
would otherwise not be able to attend a meeting on behalf of the Chapter. All 
reimbursement requests may be subject to review by the Business and Finance 
Committee. 
 
Travel expenses from the Executive Director/Administrator shall be paid for under the 
terms of the contract between the Chapter and the Executive Director/Administrator. 
However, reasonable and customary travel costs does not include added charges to the 
hotel bill for personal telephone use, services, mini bar, entertainment, personal 
incidentals or extra days of stay unrelated to conference business. All reasonable and 



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

23 

 

customary travel costs may be subject to review by the Business and Finance 
Committee. 

Eligible Conferences/Meetings for elected Officers:  
Chapter Winter Executive Committee Meeting 
Chapter Environmental Workshop 

Chapter/AAAE Annual National Airport Economic Development Conference 
Chapter Annual Conference 
Chapter Airports Conference 
AAAE Aviation Issues Conference 
AAAE Spring Chapter Officers meeting 
AAAE Annual Airports Conference 
AAAE National Airports Conference 

Other meetings and conferences are eligible provided they are approved in advance by 
the Executive Committee 

Eligible Expenses for Reimbursement:  
1. Airfare (if necessary) - coach economy class. 
2. Ground transportation - reasonable rental car/taxi/shuttle expenses where 

appropriate. 
3. Registration - not including any social events that are an additional expense. 
4. Hotel - lowest conference rate available for the days of the conference only. 

 
Note: If there is an early morning meeting arrival the night before is eligible for 
reimbursement. Unless it is impossible or impractical, it is expected that the Officer 
would depart on the last day of the conference/meeting and therefore would not be 
reimbursed for the last night of the conference/meeting. 

Attendees should provide original copies of all expense receipts to the Treasurer for 
reimbursement to eliminate the potential for accidental recovery of expenses from the 
Chapter and an attendee's airport. All reimbursement requests may be subject to review 
by the Business and Finance Committee. 

Travel Expenses for Others 
Members of the Chapter can receive travel reimbursement for conferences and 
meetings if they apply through the professional development process and are selected to 
receive the support. If attending a meeting specifically on behalf of the Officers of the 
Chapter, the member can appeal to the Officers for reimbursement, however budget for 
travel reimbursement shall not exceed the overall travel reimbursement amounts for the 
Officers and the same reimbursement parameters apply. 
 
AAAE Program Support 
The Executive Committee review and recommend to the membership the annual level of 
support the Chapter will provide to the parent organization (AAAE) to sustain their major 
programs that benefit the membership and the Chapters. Chapter sponsorship of the 
AAAE Annual Conference and the National Airports Conference is budgeted for on an 
annual basis. The following programs and amounts listed in priority order are typical 
levels of support that the Chapter has pledged annually in the past. However, these 
programs are not automatically budgeted for annually. 

AAAE Legislative Affairs - $5,000.00 
AAAE Regulatory Affairs - $5,000.00 
AAAE Foundation - $7,500.00 annually as requested by AAAE from each chapter. 



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

24 

 

If funds are available, an additional $5,000 is paid into the AAAE Foundation.  This 
annual pledge amount will go directly back to GLC members in the year of the pledge. 

These Provisional Prioritized Expenses are paid in total or in any amount approved by 
the membership based upon a recommendation by the Treasurer and approval of the 
Executive Committee annually at the Winter Executive Committee Meeting. 

This recommendation shall be based upon the budget performance in the prior year 
including, but not limited to, actual revenues and expenses compared to budgeted 
numbers, the net revenues contributed from the annual conference, and the balance in 
the business savings account. 

Occasionally AAAE may request assistance from the Chapters to support special 

projects that arise. 

  



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

25 

 

Section VI — Conferences 
 

Organization of the Chapter Annual Conference 

Planning for the Chapter Annual Conference begins two years prior to the event with the 
Conference Site Selection Committee soliciting and recommending the future location.  
The role of the Site Selection Committee is outlined in Section IV. 

 

The Chapter annual conference is organized and conducted by a conference planning 
committee made up of the following members providing the services indicated. 

Chapter First Vice President 
The Chapter First VP shall serve on the annual conference committee and shall develop 
the professional program for the conference. This includes choice of session topics and 
solicitation of speakers and/or panelists and moderators for those sessions. They should 
also determine the AV needs of the presenters and coordinate those needs with the 
Executive Director/Administrator. The First VP shall coordinate with the GLC President 
and AAAE regarding the itinerary for the parent association's President and Chair's 
attendance at the conference. 

The First VP is also responsible for coordinating with the outgoing President concerning 
the set-up of the banquet formalities and advising the Executive Director/Administrator of 
the need for head table and seating count and arrangement, or if no head table, what 
other set-up is required. The President and First VP should also agree on the transition of 
power presentation, recognition and awards as appropriate. 

Additionally, the First VP is responsible for working with the Executive 
Director/Administrator and Host City to make arrangements for the Conference Committee 
dinner on the Wednesday prior to the event. 

Host City Team  

The host city/airport shall designate a conference chair who will organize a team that can 
vary in size usually consistent with the size of the airport or number of airports involved. 
Normally, it is made up of at least four persons and may be supplemented with local 
Convention and Visitors Bureau (CVB) and/or Chamber of Commerce (COC) personnel. 
The responsibilities of the host team include, but are not limited to: 

• Choice of hotel, as defined in the Site Selection proposal. 
• Assist the First Vice President with preparation of the professional program. 
• Assist Executive Director/Administrator with managing the conference budget as 

approved annually during the Winter Executive Committee Meeting. 
• Preparation of the social program for delegates, companions and children. 
• Assist with registration upon the request of the Executive Director/Administrator. 
• Develop recognition and event signage. 
• Print conference program. 
• Arrange and supervise transportation if required. 
• Coordinate reservations at local venues for events away from the hotel. 
• Arrange for nanny (sitter) service and day care and chaperones for youth events. 
• Select menus for all food service for offsite events. 
• Assist with solicitation of sponsors for various events. 
• Sponsor an event. 
• Make arrangements for a golf outing and the traditional fishing tournament. 
• Voluntary attendance at Conference committee dinner. 



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

26 

 

• Coordinate all contracts and financially binding agreements with the Executive 
Director/Administrator prior to execution. 

Executive Director/Administrator 
The Chapter Executive Director/Administrator is also a member of the Conference 
Committee. The Executive Director/Administrator is responsible the following items to 
include, but not limited to: 

• Prepare all conference documents necessary for registration, sponsor 
solicitation, and exhibitor registration. 

• Receive and process all registrations. 
• Prints badges. 
• Oversee the execution of contracts and agreements with conference related 

event expenses. 
• Manage the conference budget as approved annually during the Winter Executive 

Committee Meeting. 
• Receive and deposit all registration fees, sponsor contributions and exhibit fees 

and provide receipts as appropriate. 
• Supervise on-site registration. 
• Assign exhibit space. 
• Prepare the attendance roster. 
• Assist host airport team with headcounts and room assignments. 
• Ensure recognition and event signage is completed by Host City. 
• Assign sponsors to specific events. 
• Work with President for arrangements for the Executive Committee and Past 

Presidents breakfasts and banquet menu. 
• Responsible for menu selection for all site events. 

The Executive Director/Administrator shall send out all registration materials to the GLC 
members and past conference attendees no later than 60 days prior to the conference. 

Chapter President 
The Chapter President's duties and responsibilities for the annual conference are to 
preside over any welcoming ceremonies and the general membership and business 
meeting, assure appropriate recognition of visiting dignitaries and preside over the 
annual banquet. They usually are responsible for the choice of the banquet menu and 
beverages as well as choice of entertainment, if any, for the banquet and the preceding 
cocktail reception. 
 
Additionally, the Chapter President is responsible for hosting the Executive Committee 
Breakfast and the Past Presidents Breakfast.  The Executive Committee Breakfast is 
traditionally on Friday morning, prior to the Chapter Business Meeting and is open for 
Past Presidents, Chapter Officers, Executive Committee Members, Committee Chairs, 
and VIP visitors to include AAAE staff in attendance at the conference. The Past 
Presidents Breakfast is held on Saturday morning of the Chapter Annual Conference 
and is open for Past Presidents and Chapter Officers to attend. 

Chapter Second Vice President 
The Chapter Second VP shall serve on the Annual Conference Committee assisting the 
First VP as needed with the professional program.  
 
 
 
 



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

27 

 

Treasurer 
They shall assist the Executive Director/Administrator and the Conference Committee 
Chair with a thorough review of the Annual Conference bills and a comparison to the 

conference budget prior to payment of the hotel/resort. 

Use of Master Account and Conference Related Expenses  
Typically, during the Chapter's Annual Conference, the Chapter's Executive 
Director/Administrator has the flexibility to charge expenses to the conference hotel's 
master account, which is subsequently paid by the Chapter. The purpose of this policy is 
to provide guidance on what type of expenditures are acceptable by the Chapter to be 
charged to the master account as well as providing guidance on other expenses paid by 
the Chapter in association with the Chapter's Annual Conference. 

All expenses charged to the master account as well as other expenses paid by the 
Chapter may be subject to review by the Business and Finance Committee. 
Typical expenses that are acceptable to the Chapter are those intended to benefit the 
Chapter as a whole, such as: meeting room charges, audio/visual charges and banquet 
charges.  
 
Request for the Chapter to pay for registration, hotel and/or other travel costs for guest 
speakers or other invited VIPs will be evaluated on a case by case basis by the Chapter 
Officers and should be limited to the greatest extent possible. 
 
When a conference is held at a site away from the host city/airport, then requests for the 
Chapter to pay for registration, hotel and/or other travel costs for support staff from the 
host airport will be evaluated on a case by case basis by the Chapter Officers and 
should be limited to the greatest extent possible. The list of support staff and all related 
expenses shall be submitted by the host airport to the Treasurer and will be subject to 
review by the Business and Finance Committee. 

While the President should pay for their own room and personal expenses, if the 
Chapter, through negotiations with the hotel, can procure a room upgrade at no charge 
to the Chapter the President should be afforded the first option to upgrade.  If there is a 
cost for the upgrade, the difference between the registration hotel rate and the suite may 
be billed to the master account. 

The Chapter may fund a reasonable cost dinner to thank host airport/city team that helped 
put on the Annual Conference. The invitation list can include the Chapter Officers, 
Conference Site selection Committee and host city airport volunteers. This list of 
volunteers should be in writing and filed with the appropriate conference files and may be 
reviewed by the Business and Finance Committee. 

The Chapter may pay for a hospitality suite that is announced to all conference 
delegates and is open to all attendees. 

Fishing Tournament 

This is a tradition begun with the first annual conference and is directed to youth 
entertainment, but enjoyed by all. Fishing gear is owned by the Chapter and is 
transported to each succeeding year's conference site by the host airport committee or 
the event sponsor depending on who chooses to take responsibility. Many participants 
choose to bring their own fishing gear. The host airport(s) committee usually appoints a 
Chair for the event and in turn the chair enlists sufficient help to bait hooks, weigh and 



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

28 

 

record fish caught, ensure safety, etc. in cooperation with the sponsor(s) 
representatives. The Conference Site Selection Committee assures that the conference 
site has a pond/lake for the event or that there is a lake nearby that can be contracted 
for the event. If necessary, the Chapter will contribute up to $500 to stock the lake prior 
to the event. Prizes are awarded to the participants (sufficient prizes should be available 
for all participants) at a ceremony that is held preceding the Presidents Reception prior 
to the annual banquet and youth entertainment events Saturday evening. The 
sponsor(s) and event Chair preside over the awards ceremony. 

Golf Tournament 
A tradition since the first annual conference. The Conference Site Selection Committee 
assures that a golf course is available on premises or nearby that can handle a "shotgun 
start" event for approximately 80 golfers. Foursomes are encouraged to sign up as part of 
the conference registration process and/or on sign-up boards available at registration. A 
sign-up fee is charged in some cases where the course requirements dictate. The host 
airport(s) committee assigns a Chair for the event who is in charge of coordinating with 
the course management for the event and coordinating with the event sponsor(s). The 
Calloway System is used to score the event and awards are presented at the President's 
Reception or the annual banquet depending on the banquet program (coordinated with 
the President and First VP). A Chapter traveling trophy is awarded for the best score 
achieved by an AAE participant. 
 
Trap/Skeet Shoot 
In 2016, a new tradition of a trap and/or skeet event took place, coinciding with the Golf 
Tournament to provide another opportunity for friendly competition. 

VIP Rooms 
Special room assignments are arranged for the following VIPs by the Conference 
Committee: 

Chapter President — usually the hotel Presidential Suite, either complimentary from 
hotel or upgrade charged to the master account. The individual shall pay all 
incidental and miscellaneous expenses charged to the room. 

Chapter First and Second VPs — Typically suites depending on the facility; however, 
the individuals pay for their rooms and incidentals. 

Chapter Executive Director — A suite charged to the master account. Incidentals for 
the spouse/companion and entertainment related expenses should be charged to the 
individual. 

Chapter National Board Members — A suite. The room and incidentals are paid by 
the member. 

AAAE Chair — A suite. The room is usually billed to the master account as the guest 
is an invitee of the Chapter President, but on occasion AAAE has covered this 
expense. Incidentals are usually paid by the AAAE Chair. 

AAAE President & CEO - A suite. The room may be billed to the master account if so 
requested by AAAE, however AAAE customarily pays for the lodging, but incidentals 
are usually paid by the President. 



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

29 

 

Other VIPs (Generally elected officials) - Occasionally, we may encounter 
circumstances where in order to attract a speaker of note or a dignitary we must offer 
to pay for lodging. Upon the Chapter Officers approval, the room/taxes are billed to 
the master account and the individual pays incidental expenses.  In addition, per 
AAAE request in 2021, Washington VIPs should receive a complimentary registration 
and transportation to and from the airport to the conference. 

Rooms that are provided by the hotel as complimentary will be designated to those 
rooms that the Chapter would typically pay for. Any additional complimentary rooms will 
be assigned by the President. 

Services for National Chair and/or AAAE President & CEO 
Other than the room arrangements listed above, other services that may be requested by 
AAAE for the Chair and President may be assistance with transportation to and from the 
airport upon arrival and departure and possibly the rental of a car. The AAAE office is 
always in touch with the Chapter President and/or Executive Director/Administrator 
about two weeks in advance concerning travel itineraries for those attending.  The AAAE 
office will pay the registration fees for the AAAE Chair and the AAAE President & CEO, 
or their representative. 
 

Sponsors  
Every effort should be made to provide sponsor recognition wherever and whenever 
possible throughout the conference and following the conference. Sponsor solicitors are 
asked to follow-up with thank you letters when confirming sponsor participation and 
following each conference. Sponsors are required to pay conference registration fees, 
unless negotiated in a sponsor package. All sponsors of record, prior to the printing of 
the conference program, should be listed in the program under their appropriate level of 
contribution and with the event that they may have chosen to sponsor or co-sponsor. 
Badges will also include a recognition ribbon. Signage will be displayed at various times 
and locations recognizing the sponsors. 

Exhibitors  
Exhibitors who have exhibited at the conference the previous year are given the 
opportunity to reserve space in advance of new exhibitors for each year's conference. A 
cutoff date is set, usually 30 days after they are first notified, after which the remaining 
space is made available to all others on a first come, first served basis. In many 
instances, we have been faced with limited exhibit space at our conference sites. We 
make every effort to keep the exhibit area close to the professional sessions so that 
coffee breaks can be held in the exhibit area. Exhibit fees are set by the Chapter Officers. 
An exhibitor who also participates as a sponsor at the $1,000.00 level or higher, is given 
a 50% discount on the exhibit space. Normally, exhibits are set up on Thursday afternoon 
concurrent with conference registration. Tear down time is at noon on Saturday. 
Exhibitors are required to pay conference registration in addition to their exhibit fees. 
Each exhibitor is provided a sign to identify their booth and badges include a recognition 
ribbon. 

Specialty Conference Planning  
National Airport Economic Development Conference and Non-Aeronautical Land Use 
Workshop 
 
The Chapter co-hosts the National Airport Economic Development Conference and the 
Non-Aeronautical Land Use Workshop with the parent organization (AAAE).  The 
conference began in 1996 as the National Air Service Conference and was conducted 

Deleted: s



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

30 

 

annually to educate and update our members on pertinent air service concerns and 
initiatives. The conference also provides revenue for the Chapter.  If there is a need to 
modify the name and focus of the event, this is an acceptable past practice that can be 
negotiated with AAAE. 
 
It is typically a one and one half day conference that begins on Sunday evening and 
ends on Tuesday afternoon. There is a reception on Sunday and there may be a 
Monday evening event if it is sponsored. 
 
The Chapter President appoints a Chair that is a Chapter member to coordinate the 
organization of the conference with the AAAE staff.  This individual should have 
aspirations of serving as a future Chapter Officer.  It is the Chair's responsibility (with the 
approval of the Chapter President) to fulfill the obligations set forth in a Memorandum of 
Understanding between the Chapter and AAAE for the development and conduct of the 
conference. The President and Conference Chair are encouraged to seek a co-
chairperson, who will ultimately succeed as Chair to maintain continuity in the conduct of 
the conferences and working relations with the AAAE staff.  Additionally the chair is 
responsible for developing a conference committee to support the planning of the 
conference. 
 
The GLC Conference Chair coordinates with AAAE on the dates and host city for the 
conference.  This is typically decided eight to ten months before the intended conference.  
First consideration should go towards cities within the Chapter, however the conference 
can be conducted anywhere in the continental United States.  The host airport typically 
assists with registration, audiovisual needs, printing and sponsorship. 
 
The Chapter is normally responsible for conference program planning and development. 
This includes, but is not limited to: 

• Selection of the host airport/city, in consultation with AAAE 

• Coordinating the business program 

• Selecting and confirming speakers 

• Soliciting sponsors for conference events with AAAE 

• Assisting with conference marketing to Chapter members with AAAE 

AAAE is normally responsible for the business and logistical arrangements of the 
meeting, which include, but are not limited to: 

• Selecting the hotel site (with Chapter approval) 
• Negotiating all contractual and logistical arrangements with the hotel 

• Printing and production of all conference materials 

• Development of a marketing plan for the meeting 

• Collecting registration information and fees 

• Handling on-site coordination of registration and hotel logistical food and 

beverage issues 

• Paying all direct expenses 

• Assisting with sponsor solicitation 

• Sending speaker confirmation letter 

• Sending thank you letters to speakers and sponsors 

• Coordinating program matter that cannot, for any reason, be handled by the 

Chapter 

 
The Committee Chair typically receives a free registration to the conference. However, 
all other attendance fees are paid by the individual. 



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

31 

 

All expenses for the conferences including an additional meal, printing, promotion, etc. 
should be approved by both entities. The Chapter should not pay for an expense that is 
not shared by the National association including entertainment. 

Rooms that are provided by the hotel as complimentary will be designated by AAAE and 
the Conference Chair. AAAE staff shall receive priority with respect to complimentary 
rooms. 

Great Lakes Chapter Airports Conference 
This conference began in November of 2015 as an effort by the Chapter to reintroduce an 
annual conference previously conducted by the FAA Great Lakes Regional Office that was 
terminated in 2009 due to federal budget constraints. The conference was designed to 
keep airport operations and maintenance personnel abreast of FAA Part 139 Certification 
requirements and airport certification and safety inspection practices conducted by the FAA 
inspectors. It also offered a valuable opportunity for personnel working on airports 
throughout the country to share information and experiences with their peers. It was the 
goal of the Chapter to expand the program to include exhibitors and an airfield equipment 
display to attract sponsors and exhibitors. 
 
This is a stand-alone conference for the Chapter with no AAAE involvement. Finances 
are handled in the same manner as those for the Chapter Annual Conference as 
described in Section V. 
 
This conference has three tracks (operations, maintenance and planning).  The Chair 
and Co-Chair develop the agenda, work closely with the FAA to identify topics that they 
would like covered, identify track leads, obtain the keynote speaker, coordinate site 
logistics with the venue and Executive Director/Administrator, host monthly conference 
calls, and seek sponsorships and exhibitors.  Track leads are responsible for ensuring 
each session has a moderator and coordinating calls between speakers and 
moderators. 

Environmental Workshop  
This workshop is held the day prior to the Great Lakes Chapter Airports Conference to 
educate and update our members on pertinent airport environmental issues. The 
conference also provides revenue for the Chapter. 

Workshop Chair — A GLC member to coordinate the organization of the conference with 
the Great Lakes Chapter Airports Conference Chair. This individual should have 
aspirations of serving as a future GLC Officer. 

Program/Agenda — The GLC representatives establish the agenda and secure speakers. 

Sponsorships — The GLC representatives take the lead in securing sponsorships for the 
conference. 
 
Winter Executive Committee Meeting 
The location of the Winter Executive Committee Meeting is at the call of the President. It 
is usually held at the location of the upcoming Chapter Annual Conference to allow the 
Officers and Executive Committee to familiarize with the local amenities available.  
However, on a few occasions it has been held at the Presidents home airport/city or an 
alternate location.  



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

32 

 

Attendance is open to all Chapter Members with all present eligible to vote.  Chapter 
Officers, State/Provincial Representatives, Executive Director/Administrator, Chapter 
Committee Chairs, and host city airport staff are encouraged to attend. Note:(Total 
attendance is usually about thirty people.) 

The agenda is prepared by the Executive Director/Administrator with input from the 
Officers and State/Provincial representatives and typically includes reports by the AAAE 
staff, (in person or by phone) Committee Chairs and State/Provincial representatives 
and invited presenters.  
 
Key items brought before the meeting are approval of the projected Chapter annual 
budget, annual donations to support AAAE departments and other Provisional Prioritized 
Expenses and the selection of future Chapter Annual Conference site(s) following any 
presentations or as recommended by the Site selection Committee. 

  

Deleted: limited to the Officers, State /Provincial 
Representatives, Executive Director/Administrator, 
Chapter Committee Chairs, host city airport staff and 
persons invited by any of the above to make 
presentations at the meeting. Other guests may include 
representatives of firms who are sponsors of the 
meeting events as well as Chapter members that may 
find it convenient to attend due to the location.  



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

33 

 

Section VII - Awards, Recognition and Resolutions 
 
ARFF Awards 
Award of Valor 
Each year, the Chapter can present an Award of Valor for outstanding performance in 
ARFF safety at the AAAE annual conference. The award can be presented to an 
individual or group of individuals, who in the opinion of the nominator(s) has made an 
exemplary or heroic effort to save lives and/or property during an airport emergency 
response involving aircraft or structural firefighting. The recipient(s) receive a plaque and 
a check in the amount of $500.00. 

The Chapter Operations, Safety, Planning and Emergency Management Committee 
solicits nominations for the award no later than 90 days prior to the annual AAAE 
conference and the applications shall be received 60 days prior to the conference dates. 

The committee should select and notify the recipient no less than 45 days prior to the 
conference so as to afford the recipient an opportunity to make travel arrangements. The 
recipient(s) or a representative are asked to be present at the conference to receive the 
award. Notifications to non-selected nominees should be sent out as a courtesy. 
Nominations for the Valor Award can be reconsidered the next year and the nomination 
can be considered for the Chapter Meritorious Service Award if the nominee is within the 
Great Lakes Chapter. 

The Committee Chair orders the recognition plaque and coordinates with the Executive 
Director/Administrator to purchase the plaque and provide the award check. 

Meritorious Service Award  
Each year the Chapter has the opportunity to present a Meritorious Service Award for 
meritorious and dedicated service within the Aircraft Rescue Fire Fighting section and is 
limited to candidates from within the Chapter area. This award recognizes candidates 
who have shown exceptional skills in the workplace by organizing or directing special 
projects, employing innovative ideas, proactively improving safety, public service or 
demonstrating exceptional skills. The recipient(s) receive a plaque and a check for 
$100.00. The award is presented at the Chapter annual conference and the recipient(s) 
is invited to be present to receive the award. 
 
The Chapter Operations Safety, Planning and Emergency Management Committee 
solicits nominations for the award no later than 90 days prior to the Chapter conference 
and the applicants shall be received 60 days prior to the conference dates. 
 
The committee should select and notify the recipient no less than 45 days prior to the 
conference so as to afford the recipient an opportunity to make travel arrangements. The 
recipient(s) or a representative is asked to be present at the conference to receive the 
award. Notifications to non-selected nominees should be sent out as a courtesy. 
Nominations for the Meritorious Award can be reconsidered the next year. 
 
President’s Awards 
President’s Award  
The Chapter President may choose to honor someone they feel has made a significant 
contribution to the good of the Chapter. This award is usually presented at the Chapter 
Annual Conference banquet and may be of the President's choosing.  
 



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

34 

 

 
 
The President's Award will not necessarily be awarded annually, but only at such time 
that a worthy recipient has been identified. It is suggested that the value of such an 
award should not exceed $250. 

President's Recognition  

The Chapter President may from time to time offer special recognition to an individual they 
feel merits recognition for services rendered to the Chapter or its members. This 
recognition can be expressed in various ways such as a certificate, a resolution, a gift, 
(within approved guidelines) or other expression of appreciation. The recognition is usually 
offered at the Chapter Annual Conference banquet, but could be presented at events or 
ceremonies recognizing the recipient in their city or workplace. 

President Plaque, Gift, and Pinning 

The outgoing Chapter President is typically recognized at the annual conference with a 
plaque and Past Presidents lapel pin. An optional gift may be provided with a cost paid by 
the Chapter that will not exceed $300. The incoming President selects and coordinates the 
item(s).  The outgoing President is pinned by the incoming President during the banquet 
presentation. 

Other Gifts and/or Awards 
All other gifts and/or awards other than those specified above are subject to the approval 
of the Executive Committee. Gifts are limited to a maximum of $250. Gifts and/or awards 
may be recommended by the Chapter Officers, Executive Committee or Committee 
Chairs and may be presented at such time and place as approved by the Executive 
Committee. 

Resolutions  
Resolutions adopted by the Chapter may be directed to specific industry topics or events 
to express the Chapter membership's opinion, opposition or support regarding such 
issues or events. Resolutions are prepared by Executive Director/Administrator after 
review by the President and presented to the membership for approval. The membership 
may; during the course of a business meeting, direct the President to prepare or direct 
the preparation of a resolution to express their opinion or concern on an issue.  Such 
resolutions, when approved by the membership, are to be forwarded by the President to 
an individual or entity to whom the membership wishes to express their opinion or 
concern. 
 
There are a group of standard resolutions that are prepared annually in conjunction with 
the annual conference. They typically include, but are not limited to the following topics: 

• Recognition and thanks for the Chapter President's year of service. 
• Recognition and thanks to the host hotel staff and management. 
• Recognition and thanks to the host airport conference committee. 
• Recognition and thanks to the host airport director and airport board for their 

support of the conference. 
• Recognition and thanks to the annual conference sponsors 
• Recognition and thanks to the conference Chairs, the AAAE staff and the host 

airport/city for their efforts in organizing and conducting the National Airport 
Economic Development Conference that year. 

 



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

35 

 

Formal copies of the resolutions are presented to or mailed to those recognized. In the 
case of the conference sponsors, each sponsor is mailed a personalized copy of the 
sponsor resolution. 
 
Corporate Committee Awards 
The Corporate Advisory Committee presents the following awards during the GLC 
Annual Conference:  
 
Airport Professional of the Year - This award is presented to an Executive Member of the 
Chapter, in good standing, who may or may not be an AAE. The recipient shall have 
established himself or herself as a deserving recipient of the Award by his/her 
professional accomplishments and contributions to the industry in the recent past, 
including demonstrated support/participation in the GLC/AAAE Chapter. 
 
Corporate Member of the Year - This award is presented to a corporate member or firm 
who is a member in good standing of the Chapter. They must have completed work or 
supplied a product within the Chapter’s boundaries, or must have made a significant 
contribution within the Industry, particularly within the Chapter’s boundaries, during the 
calendar year prior to the GLC Annual Conference. 

 
Commercial Airport Project of the Year - This award is presented to an airport that is 
currently represented within the Chapter by an Executive Member in good standing. The 
project must be fully operational at the time of the nomination. Award will be given to one 
Airfield Project and one Architectural Project. 
 
General Aviation Airport Project of the Year - This award is presented to an airport that is 
currently represented within the Chapter by an Executive Member in good standing. The 
project must be fully operational at the time of the nomination. Award will be given to one 
Airfield Project and one Architectural Project. 

Section VIII — Chapter Advertising and Promotion 

Convention Exhibit Booth  

The Chapter purchased a convention exhibit in 1989, which was sold in 2019.  Chapter 
Officers did not determine a need to purchase a new booth at the time.  Instead, a GLC 
tablecloth was purchased to utilize at an exhibit table and/or at the registration table for 
Chapter events.   

 
Advertising 
All Chapter advertisement is contingent on the budget and approval by the Chapter 
Officers.  Advertising has historically been used to publicize the Chapter events, the 
logistical information for the Chapter Annual Conference, and to promote participation in 
the Chapter ARFF Award of Valor or financial assistance opportunities.   

Chapter Website  
The Chapter has utilized the web address of www.glcaaae.org since 2001.  The site 
contains many resources for current and potential members to include, but not limited to, 
registration for events, historical information, membership lists, and awards and 
scholarship opportunities and applications.  The Executive Director/Administrator is 
responsible for administering the website, with content updates being the responsibility 
of Executive Committee members and Committee Chairs.   
 

Deleted: Page Break

http://www.glcaaae.org/


GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

36 

 

Chapter Social Media Pages 
The Chapter currently has social media presence on Facebook (including a private 
group), LinkedIn, Twitter, and Instagram.  The Executive Director/Administrator is listed 
as Admin on all social media as well as at least one Executive Committee member.  Any 
Executive Committee Member or Committee Chairperson may request content changes 
to the social media platforms by reaching out directly to the Executive 
Director/Administrator.  Members must request content changes through an Executive 
Committee member or Committee Chair. 
 

Grass Root Efforts 
The success of the Chapter’s continued growth is dependent on all membership 
providing grass root information to potential members.  It is the expectation of the State 
and Provincial Representatives to intentionally and actively promote the Chapter benefits 
and opportunities to the Airport leaders in their area. 
 



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

37 

 

Appendix A - Chapter Past Presidents 

Name Years Served Airport Represented 
Barry S. Craig 1968-1969 Dayton, Ohio 

George N. Kirk 1969-1970 Moline, IL  

Robert S. Michael 1970-1971 Milwaukee, WI  

James R. Hawley 1971-1972 Muskegon, MI  

Rolland A. Harr 1972-1973 Lincoln, NE  

Daniel C. Orcutt 1973-1974 Indianapolis, IN  

Roy W. Jamesen 1974-1975 Cedar Rapids, IA  

Donald E. Tharp 1975-1976 Des Moines, IA  

William H. Grady 1976-1977 Rockford, IL  

C. Gene Siebert 1977-1978 Carbondale, IL  

John C. Rinehart 1978-1979 Ann Arbor, MI  

James E. Johnson 1979-1980 Moline, IL  

James G. Cobb 1980-1981 Elkhart, IN  

Peter L. Drahn 1981-1982 Madison, WI  

Robert J. Hunt 1982-1983 Columbus, OH  

Robert J. Spitler 1983-1984 Indianapolis, IN  

Raymond L. Hoverman 1984-1985 Fort Wayne, IN  

Timothy C. Callister 1985-1986 Minneapolis, MN  

Russell D. Klay 1986-1987 Omaha, NE  

Michael N. Marnach 1987-1988 Sioux Falls, SD  

John C. Schalliol 1988-1989 South Bend, IN  

James A. Koslosky 1989-1990 Fort Wayne, IN  

Robert D. Hancik 1990-1991 Springfield, MO  

James J. McCue 1991-1992 Toledo, OH  

James Hansford 1992-1993 Mosinee, WI  

Bradley S. Livingston 1993-1994 Madison, WI  

Bruce E. Carter 1994-1995 Peoria, IL  

Eric N. Waldron 1995-1996 Cleveland, OH  

Robert F. Selig 1996-1997 Grand Forks, ND  

James L. Rice II 1997-1998 Flint, MI 

Michael J. Haney 1998-1999 Moline, IL 

Charles T. "Skip" Miller 1999-2000 Fort Wayne, IN  

Robert W. O'Brien, Jr. 2000-2001 Springfield, IL  

Gary A. Cyr, Sr. 2001-2002 Springfield, MO  

Linda G. Frankl 2002-2003 Columbus, OH  

Michael A. Gobb 2003-2004 Lexington, KY  

Eric J. Frankl 2004-2005 Springfield, IL  

Charles J. Goodwin 2005-2006 Columbus, OH  

Robert H. Working 2006-2007 Evansville, IN  

Deleted: Ft.

Deleted: t.



GLC AAAE POLICY AND PRACTICES MANUAL 
 

38 

 

Torrance A. Richardson 2007-2008 Fort Wayne, IN  

Phillip E. Johnson 2008-2009 Grand Rapids, MI  

Shawn M. Schroeder 2009-2010 Springfield, MO  

Michael J. Olson 2010-2011 Grand Island, NE  

Brian D. Ryks 2011-2012 Duluth, MN  

Sara A. Freese 2012-2013 Cedar Rapids, IA  

Scott D. Hinderman 2013-2014 Fort Wayne, IN  

Michael A. Daigle 2014-2015 South Bend, IN  

David S. Lanter 2015-2016 Lexington, KY  

Timothy K. O'Donnell 
2016-2017 (8/16 -2/17) 
*Shorten due to Military 

Orders 
South Bend, IN  

Marc M. Sethna 2016-2017 (Acting) Columbus, OH  

Marc M. Sethna  2017-2018  Columbus, OH 

Craig A. Williams 2018-2019 Flint, MI 

Shawn A. Dobberstein 2019-2020 Fargo, ND 

Joseph Marana 2020-2021 Fort Wayne, IN 

   

 



Indiana Report 

Submitted by Nate Hahn 

 

• The State passed a 2-year budget that included dedicated state funding through aviation related 
taxes, mainly fuel, directly into the INDOT Aviation fund for matching AIP grants and other local 
INDOT Aviation projects. 

• Also included in the state budget was $10M set aside through our state economic development 
organization to help lure additional air service. 

• The State has seen a surplus in revenue in recent years and have initiated the “READI” program, 
which is a regional economic development program that creates Public-Private Partnerships to 
stretch those funds.  It is expected that 10 regions will receive $50M each.  Evansville Regional 
Airport was able to access similar funds several years ago to help fund a Terminal remodel. 

• INDOT Aviation has started a pilot program for aircraft monitoring to get a true count of aircraft 
activity at airports.  It is currently being piloted at two airports (one GA, one Air Carrier).  The 
goal for the program is that INDOT Aviation will fund a significant portion of the purchase of the 
equipment and the local airport will pay the remaining portion and future technology updates.  

• INDOT Aviation is starting a system plan update for all the State’s airports.  This will include a 
use of modeling to include aviation economic impact both on the local and state-wide level of 
airports. 

 



 

 
 

MEMO 
Date: July 28, 2021 

To: Joe Marana, A.A.E., President, Great Lakes Chapter of AAAE 

From: Casey Denny, A.A.E., AAAE Regional Examiner – Great Lakes 

Subject: GLAAAE Accreditation Report 
 
New A.A.E’s in Great Lakes Region (2021) – I am 
pleased to report that 7 candidates from our region 
have been accredited so far in 2021. They include:  

 
• Mr. Roy R. Fuhrmann, A.A.E. 
• Mr. Dave Schaumburg, A.A.E.  
• Mr. Jonathon Ron, A.A.E. 
• Mr. William Brenny, A.A.E.  
• Ms. Ashley Lynette Lucas, A.A.E.  
• Mr. Chris Yeates, A.A.E. 
• Mr. Elie Zogheib, A.A.E.  

 
Active A.A.E.s – With five new AAEs from the 
AAAE Annual conference (including one from Great 
Lakes), we tied the highest total number of active 
AAEs ever at 483. Two weeks ago, I hosted 
another panel at Columbus where Mr. Elie Zogheib 
of Cleveland earned his accreditation. Mr. Zogheib makes that total 484, the highest number of active 
AAEs ever.  
 
As of this date, 87 (+3) of those 484 are from the Great Lakes region (note: some numbers do not add 
due to members leaving the industry or transferring regions). GLAAAE mentors continue to do a 
tremendous job in 2021 producing 7 new AAE’s out of the 23 total year-to-date, more than any other 
single chapter.   

 
Board of Examiners Updates – The BOE conducted a mini virtual retreat April 8-9. We continued our 
discussion regarding program standards and the ever-evolving bank of questions asked during the final 
interview.  The BOE is committed to maintaining the high standards of the program and have started to 
realign final interview topics to reduce duplication of technical elements covered by the Certified Member 
exam. As such, adjustments to questions addressing political dexterity, organizational development, and 
leadership have been developed and are under review. A summary of this was provided to the AAAE 
Executive Committee and being aligned with our new chair’s desired to improve professional development 
within our industry. I would be happy to meet with any accredited members on details and address any 
questions they may have more specifically, but desire to refrain from such discussion in open session. 

Great Lakes
18%

Northeast
12%

Northwest
14%

Southcentral
10%

Southeast
33%

Southwest
13%

Accredited Members by Region


	Agenda Annual Conference Business Meeting 2021 052621 (002)
	Great Lakes Chapter AAAE Board Meeting July 12
	Financial Report 1
	Financial Report 2
	MembershipReportJuly21comparison
	ONTARIO REGION REPORT - June 2021
	GLC_NominatingCommitteeReport_June18, 2021
	PDC Report 07 2021 AAAE Annual and GLC Chapter Business meeting
	2021 LNK GLC AAAE Professional Agenda 070921 Final ver 1
	2021-07-30 GA committee report packet
	Ops_Planning_Safety Report - July 2021
	Academic Relations_Memb 061721 (Full)
	Diversity Report
	2021-07-30 NAEDC committee report for Lincoln 20210719 w attach
	Corporate Advisory Committee Report - 06-17-2021
	2021 Draft AAAE GLC Conference Schedule 3 tracks
	Board Report 6.17.21
	Foundation Investment Management--Endowment Policy Guidlines
	GLC POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL draft July 2021 revision 071921 ver 2
	Indiana Report

